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2004 Annual Report — CORGENTECH

At Corgentech, we are focused on the discovery, development and commercialization of
new classes of therapeutics that inhibit key cellular functions involved in disease. Our
research and development efforts are based on two different technology platforms, which
are utilized to create treatments for inflammatory diseases, hospital-based infections and
cancer. With over $100 million in cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2005, we have
the financial means to both advance our pipeline of new product candidates and to
acquire or in-license additional products and technologies to bolster our product pipeline.

o Dedisive Action and Substantial Resources Recently, we acted decisively when Phase 3 trials (PREVENT (Il and
PREVENT V) of our lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, failed to meet their primary and secondary endpoints.
These trials, while well run and executed, did not produce the results we were hoping for. We, therefore, have
decided not to continue development of E2F Decoy and have restructured our operations to focus our efforts
on our pipeline of exciting next-generation product candidates.

o Advancing Pipeline of Product Candidates We have substantial resources to move new programs into clinical
development. Our NF-kappaB (NF-kB) Decoy recently entered the clinic to evaluate its potential to treat
eczema, and we expect to initiate a second eczema trial outside the United States by mid-2005. These two
trials are designed to demonstrate proof-of-concept, with data from both expected by early 2006. Eczema
afflicts between 10 and 20 percent of infants and approximately 15 million adults in the United States.

o Efficient Engine To Rapidly Create Product Candidates for Unmet Medical Needs Targeting transcription
factors (TFs) is a potentially powerful therapeutic approach for many diseases since TFs are critical regulators
of gene expression, controlling all human biological processes. An excelient example—our NF-«B Decoy for
eczema—which was generated in just five months, potently and selectively binds to the transcription factor
NF-kB and bliocks the genes that turn on the inflammatory cascade. To date, our NF-kB Decoy has shown
promising preclinical results in eczema, asthma, inflammatory bowel disease and arthritis.

» Furthuring Preclinical Pipeline Other areas of extensive pipeline activity at the research stage include our
infectious disease program focused on blocking bacterial growth and antibiotic resistance, as well as a
TF decoy program directed at blocking HIF (Hypoxia Inducible Factor), a transcription factor that plays a key
role in cancer growth. Our near-term focus will be on furthuring the development of our NF-kB and
antibiotic aptamer programs.

o Creating Stockholder Value Corgentech is moving its pipeline forward focusing on product opportunities
that address large, proven markets. As we are committed to creating value for our stockholders, we will also
be opportunistic about considering in-licensing opportunities that may augment our product pipeline.

We appreciate your continued support and confidence and look forward to reporting our progress during 2005.

Sincerely,

by d Fe | e UL

RODNEY A. FERGUSON, J.D,, Ph.D. JOHN P, Mc LAUGHLIN
Chairman of the Board President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director




NOVEL TECHNOLOGY PLATFORMS

Proprietary Therapies Targeting Proven Markets

Preclinical data from our NF-xB Decoy for eczema have indicated that the drug has the potential to
show fast acting results and efficacy rivaling that of currently available therapies but without the
associated side effects,

NF-«xB DECOY for INFLAMMATORY DISEASES

NF-xB Decoy - A pivotal regulator of many genes involved in the
Targets Inflammation control of inflammation, immune response and
cell death.

> A high affinity decoy that can reduce inflammation
by preferentially blocking the complexes of
NF-kB most responsible for turning on the
pro-inflammatory genes.

Multiple Clinical - Promising preclinical results have been shown in
Targets eczema, asthma, inflammatory bowel disease
and arthritis.

Two Phase 1/2 - Multi-center trials evaluating the safety and
Trials for Eczema feasibility of repeated application of NF-xB Decoy in
adult patients with mild-to-moderate eczema.

e U.S. and Ex-U.S. trial to be completed in 75 and 120
patients, respectively. Data from both studies are
expected by early 2006.

o Potentially quick path to approval based on
validated endpoints and fast clinical trials.

o Efficient drug delivery evident in preclinical data,
which showed a potentially effective treatment
for eczema.
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WO DIFFERENT BRODUCT PLATRORMS

Aptamers: Novel, short strands of DNA
which bind to and inhibit the function of
specific targeted proteins to interrupt key
pathways involved in disease.

ANTIBIOTIC APTAMERS for INFECTION

Transcription Factor Decoys: DNA “mimics”
of TF binding sites in target genes which
bind to a specific TF, preventing the activation
of genes involved in disease.

o Research data suggest significant effective blockade of bacterial growth.

o Potential ability to augment antibiotic effects and block antibiotic resistance. More than 70 percent of bacteria

are resistant to at least one antibiotic.

o Over two million cases of hospital-based infections in the U.S. each year, including pneumonia and urinary
tract infections, contributing to a worldwide market of over $8 billion.

o Aptamers are a proven technology with a product that is FDA-approved and on the market.

HIF DECOY for CANCER

e Preclinical studies of pancreatic, colon and lung cancer showed tumor growth inhibition as monotherapy and
an additive effect in combination with Avastin™ and 5-Fluorouracil.

o A key TF regulator of the response to hypoxia, or a lack of sufficient oxygen, that is activated in a broad range

of cancers.

= Blockade of HIF will inhibit not only angiogenesis, but also tumor growth and survival, making it an attractive

target for certain cancers.




CORGENTECH CORE STRENGTHS

Financial Strength - Experienced Management - Broad Pipeline

> Financial Strength We are in a strong financial position having closed the first quarter of 2005 with more
than $100 million in cash and cash equivalents. We will continue to operate our business in a disciplined and
focused manner in order to advance our pipeline, or if it makes sense, to augment it with additional products
or technologies.

o Seascned Management We have an experienced management team who are experts in their respective
fields including research, development, clinical, manufacturing, regulatory, business development and
commercialization. The team is sharply focused on advancing Corgentech toward commercialization.

o Broad Product Pipeline We are excited about the potential of our NF-kB Decoy clinical trials in eczema, which
are expected to produce data by early 2006. Our pipeline, for which we hold worldwide rights, is based on
two different technologies—TF Decoys and aptamers—and is targeting unmet medical needs, and where
possible, indications enabling quick pathways to product approval.
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Explanatory Note

This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A amends our Annual Report on Form 10-K, which was submitted erroneously to the
Securities and Exchange Commission by our third-party printer on March 21, 2005. The Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
March 22, 2005 contained a signed Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated January 25, 2005, except
for Note 11 as to which the date is March 11, 2005 on page 55 and a signed consent filed as Exhibit 23.1, dated as of March 21,
2005. Such Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and consent had not been signed or issued and were
submiitted in error to the Securities and Exchange Commission by our third-party printer. The issuance date of the Report of
Independent Registered Accounting Firm, dated January 25, 2005, except for Note 11 as to which the date is March 11, 2005 and
consent filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A is March 23, 2005. This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A corrects:

¢ the additional number of shares reserved for issuance under our 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and 2003
Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan during the year ended December 31, 2004 from 2,677,726 to
1,200,000 on page 79; ‘

¢ the number of shares reserved for issuance of stock options under our 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and 2003
Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan from 4,249,313 to 2,771,587 and the total number of shares reserved
for future issuances from 4,632,266 to 3,154,540 on pages 78 and 81, respectively; and

e the number of shares available for grant at December 31, 2004 under our 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and 2003
Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan from 1,607,990 to 130,264 on page 79.
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PARTI

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, including particularly the sections entitled "Business Risks," "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and "Business," contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, which are subject to the "safe harbor" created by those sections. These statements relate to future events or our
future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from any future results, levels of activity, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statermnents by terminology such as "anticipates," "believes,” "continue," "estimates," "expects," "intends," "may," "plans,"
"potential,” "predicts," "should,"” "will," or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Except as required by
law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A's is filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Item 1. Business
Overview

Corgentech is creating a pipeline of novel therapeutics based on our proprietary transcription factor decoy, or TF decoy,
technology. We evaluated our lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, a combination drug and delivery device, in two Phase 3
clinical trials during 2004 for the prevention of vein graft failure. The first of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT 11, which
evaluated E2F Decoy in patients undergoing peripheral bypass graft surgeries (in the leg), did not meet its primary or secondary
endpoints. The second of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT IV, is evaluating patients undergoing coronary artery bypass
graft, or CABG, surgeries. We and our collaboration partner, Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, or BMS,; are planning to meet by
the end of March 2005 with the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, prior to unblinding the data from PREVENT IV.
Whether we unblind and announce our PREVENT 1V data prior to the end of March, as was previously anticipated, will depend
on the timing and results of our meeting with the FDA. We are also developing E2F Decoy for the prevention of arterio-venous,
or AV, graft failure and completed enrollment of a Phase 1/2 clinical trial for this indication in late 2004. E2F Decoy has received
Fast Track designation from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, for both the prevention of vein graft failure and AV
graft failure. In October 2003, we entered into a worldwide collaborative agreement with BMS for the development and
commercialization of E2F Decoy for all indications. We have an additional TF Decoy in clinical development for the treatment of
eczema and preclinical development for the treatment of other inflammatory diseases and an additional TF decoy in pre-clinical
development for the treatment of cancer. In January 2003, we announced the filing of an investigational new drug application, or
IND, with the FDA to begin a Phase 1/2, 75-patient clinical trial of NF-kB Decoy for atopic dermatitis, also known as eczema.
This is the first of two Phase 1/2 trials to be initiated. Our second trial will be conducted outside the United States and is expected
to be initiated in the first half of 2005 in a similar-size patient population.

We are focused on the discovery, development and commercialization of a new class of therapeutics called transcription
factor decoys. Our TF decoys are synthetically manufactured short strands of DNA that specifically bind to and block the activity
of their target transcription factors. Transcription factors are specialized DNA-binding proteins and are widely recognized as
excellent therapeutic targets because they control gene expression and biological processes. Because abnormal gene expression is
a fundamental cause of many diseases, controlling the regulators, the transcription factors, offers an attractive therapeutic
approach. We believe that TF decoys may offer advantages over existing therapeutic approaches because a single TF decoy can
target multiple genes involved in a




specific disease process. We are focused on TF decoys initially for the treatment of cardiovascular disease, inflammatory disease,
such as eczema, and cancer.

As part of our collaboration with BMS, we retain the right to co-promote E2F Decoy in the United States, and we intend
to build a specialty sales force with BMS to support the sales of E2F Decoy in the United States. Because E2F Decoy will be used
by physicians in a relatively concentrated market, we believe this market can be effectively covered with a specialty sales force of
approximately 50 to 65 representatives. We will share 50 percent of the profits or losses from the sale of E2F Decoy in the United
States and will receive royalties on all E2F Decoy sales outside of the United States. We have retained the commercialization
rights to our other product candidates.

Scientific Background
Transcription Factors Regulate Gene Expression

The human genome is the complete set of DNA-encoded instructions that serves as the blueprint for all cellular
structures and activities. The human genome is estimated to comprise approximately 30,000 genes. Genes are segments of DNA
with specific sequences that direct the production of proteins which carry out critical biological functions.

The protein-coding instructions from genes are not transmitted directly from DNA to proteins. Instead, the information
is transmitted indirectly through messenger RNA, or mRNA. mRNA is a transient intermediary molecule similar to a single strand
of DNA that serves as the template for protein production. mRNA is produced in a highly regulated and essential process called
transcription. Transcription plays a central role in gene expression and therefore represents an attractive control point for
regulating the expression of genes.

Transcription factors regulate gene expression by recognizing and binding to short stretches of a specific DNA sequence
in the regulatory region of genes and controlling the transcription of RNA. Some transcription factors selectively regulate one or a
few genes, whereas other transcription factors act more like master switches that activate multiple genes in a functional pathway.
A set of genes activated by a single transcription factor share a similar DNA sequence called a transcription factor consensus
sequence in their regulatory region. When a transcription factor is activated, it interacts with a specific binding site in its target
genes, thereby initiating expression of an entire set of genes. Hundreds of transcription factors have been identified and
characterized to date. There are estimated to be approximately 2,000 human transcription factors.

Gene Expression in Disease

The human body is made up of specialized cells that perform different functions. Every cell in the body possesses
approximately 30,000 genes that constitute the human genome. However, different subsets of genes are activated or turned on in
different cell types, depending on the specific function of that cell type. In other words, the function or activity of a cell is
controlled by the regulation of the expression of specific genes in that cell. Tight control of gene expression is paramount for the
normal function of cells. Inappropriate gene activation, resulting in overexpression or underexpression of a protein or group of
proteins, is an underlying cause of many diseases.

TF Decoys: A New Class of Therapeutics

We have developed a novel and proprietary method for regulating gene expression through the inhibition of specific
transcription factors. Our core technology involves the delivery of small strands of synthetically manufactured DNA called TF
decoys as therapeutic agents. TF decoys mimic the binding site of the transcription factor. As a result, the transcription factor
binds to the TF decoy, thereby preventing the transcription factor from binding to and activating the genes it regulates.



We have developed a proprietary method for the highly efficient delivery of TF decoys into cells and tissues without the
use of potentially hazardous substances, using controlled uniform pressure. The delivery of these TF decoys can be adjusted by
controlling three variables: pressure, duration of treatment and concentration of TF decoy. Our tests have demonstrated that we
are able to deliver TF decoys to approximately 90 percent of the cells and tissues treated at a modest pressure of six pounds per
square inch for 10 minutes.

We believe that pressure treatment is a safe and highly effective method for delivery of TF decoys into cells; however,
alternative delivery methods will expand the potential therapeutic indications for which TF decoys can be utilized. For use with
future TF decoys, we are evaluating a number of different delivery technologies including several that rely upon peptides. The
peptides are chemically linked to TF decoys, actively transporting the TF decoy and peptide constructs into the cell. In
September 2004, we licensed a novel peptide delivery system from Cyclacel Limited, or Cyclacel, for potential use in assisting in
the systemic delivery of TF Decoys. The license grants Corgentech use of Cyclacel's proprietary Penetratin delivery technology
with TF Decoys. We paid Cyclacel an up-front payment and will pay Cyclacel milestone payments and royalties if licensed
products are commercialized. Early work with peptide delivery has produced promising results.

The Advantages of Our TF Decoy Platform

We believe our TF decoys may offer several advantages over existing therapeutic approaches:

Broadly Applicable to a Variety of Diseases. Because inappropriate expression of genes plays an important role in
most diseases, our TF decoy technology allows us to address a wide range of diseases.

Potentially More Effective Treatment. Many diseases are caused by the inappropriate expression of multiple
functionally related genes. By intervening at the transcription factor level, TF decoys prevent the expression of
multiple, related genes that are turned on when they should not be, thereby potentially providing more effective
treatment than therapeutics that target a single gene.

Short Development Cycle. In contrast to the year or more required to discover and optimize small molecule
therapeutics, TF decoys can be designed based on known transcription factor binding site information and be ready
for preclinical testing in a matter of one or two months.

Ease of Manufacruring. In contrast to the typical biotechnology therapeutic product, TF decoys can be easily
synthesized and purified at a reasonable cost. Our synthesis technology renders TF decoys resistant to degradation
which simplifies the storage and distribution of these products.

Product Pipeline

Our lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, a combination drug and delivery device, was evaluated in two Phase 3 clinical
trials during 2004 for the prevention of vein graft failure. The first of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT 111, evaluated E2F
Decoy in patients undergoing peripheral bypass graft surgeries (in the leg). We announced in December 2004 that the trial did not
meet its primary or secondary endpoints. The second of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT [V, is evaluating patients
undergoing CABG surgeries. We and BMS are planning to meet by the end of March 2005 with the FDA prior to unblinding the
data from PREVENT IV. Whether we unblind and announce our PREVENT 1V data prior to the end of March, as was previously
anticipated, will depend on the timing and results of our meeting with the FDA. We are also developing E2F Decoy for the
prevention of AV graft failure and completed enrollment of a Phase 1/2 clinical trial for this indication in late 2004, We have filed
an Investigational New Drug, or IND, application with the FDA for a Phase 1/2 clinical trial of our second TF decoy, Nuclear
Factor Kappa B, or NF-kB Decoy, for eczema. In addition, we are




studying TF decoys in various oncology indications and have conducted preclinical studies in several cancer models.

Product Corgentech
Candidate Clinical Indications Development Status Commercialization Rights

E2F Decoy CABG Phase 3 enrollment and 50%-50% co-promotion with

treatment completed. BMS in the U.S. and royalties
outside the U.S.

E2F Decoy AV Graft Failure Phase 1/2 enrollment Same as above
completed.

'NF-kB Decoy Inflammatory diseases such as | Two Phase 1/2 eczema trials 100% worldwide

eczema planned to initiate in 1HO5—

one in U.S. and one outside
uU.S.

HIF Decoy Cancer Preclinical 100% worldwide

E2F Decoy for the Prevention of Coronary Artery Bypass Graft Failure

CABG Surgery and CABG Graft Failure

The arteries that transport blood to the heart muscle can become clogged by plaque which is a build-up of smooth
muscle cells, fat and cholesterol on the inside walls of arteries. This build-up blocks or narrows arteries and prevents blood and
oxygen from reaching the heart. CABG surgery is performed to reroute blood around clogged arteries thereby improving the flow
of blood and oxygen to the heart. CABG surgery is one of the most common surgical procedures in the United States.

While CABG surgeries are very effective procedures for restoring blood flow to otherwise oxygen starved tissue, these
grafts often fail. The veins typically used in bypass surgery are thin walled vessels that are designed for a low-pressure
environment. Arteries are thick walled vessels that have evolved to handle the high-pressure flow of blood from the heart. When
the vein grafts used to bypass a blocked artery are exposed to the high pressure of arterial flow, there is significant stress on the
thin wall of the veins. The vein responds to this perceived injury by causing its walls to thicken. Unfortunately, the vein does so in
a manner that often leads to failure of the bypass gratt. Smooth muscle cells proliferate in the middle layer of the vein wall and
migrate to the inner surface of the vein over a two-week period following surgery, in a process known as neointimal hyperplasia.
The resulting accumulation of activated smooth muscle cells secrete inflammatory and growth factors leading to plaque build up
and graft failure over time. Currently, there is no approved pharmacologic therapy for the prevention of vein graft failure.

In 2002, approximately 370,000 CABG procedures were performed in the United States with an additional 280,000
performed in Europe and 15,000 in Japan. Approximately 19 percent of bypass grafts fail at one year with the failure rate
climbing to about 50 percent between years ten and fifteen. The ramifications of failure for CABG patients include heart attack,
chest pain, congestive heart failure, irregular heartbeat and death. A repeat of a CABG procedure to repair a failing or failed graft
is a technically more difficult procedure with mortality rates of three to five times higher than the original CABG procedure.
During 2002, in the United States, the average hospital charge for a repeat CABG surgery was about $80,000.




E2F Decoy: Our Solution for the Prevention of Bypass Graft Failure

E2F Decoy prevents bypass vein graft failure by binding to and inactivating the E2F transcription factor. E2F is
responsible for the activation of numerous genes involved in the growth and proliferation of certain cells, including the smooth
muscle cells that comprise neointimal hyperplasia. E2F Decoy treatment, by blocking the E2F transcription factor, prevents the
activation of the genes responsible for the proliferation of the smooth muscle cells that cause neointimal hyperplasia. E2F Decoy
also causes the graft biology to adapt to the high-pressure environment of arterial blood flow in a more favorable manner. Rather
than the formation of neointimal hyperplasia on the inner surface of the vein, the cells in the middle layer of the vein lengthen and
thicken, creating a new and stronger architecture in the vein that more closely resembles an artery, the blood vessel that the graft
is designed to replace.

E2F Decoy treatment involves only a single administration and is easily integrated into current surgical practice.
Typically in CABG surgery, the vein that will serve as the bypass grafts is harvested from the leg and checked for holes and
lesions. The surgeon then sets the vein aside and prepares the chest for implantation of the bypass graft. E2F Decoy treatment
occurs in the operating room after the vein is harvested and before implantation. Afier harvest and inspection, the vein is placed in
the treatment chamber of our delivery device, the chamber is filled with E2F Decoy, and non-distending pressure is introduced for
10 minutes. This pressure causes E2F Decoy to enter into the cells of the vein. After 10 minutes of treatment, the vein graft is
removed from the chamber, excess E2F Decoy is rinsed off, and the treated vein is ready for surgical implantation using
traditional surgical techniques. There are no further treatments. We believe that E2F Decoy will be viewed as an attractive and
convenient therapy by surgeons for several reasons, including:

e  Safety: Because the treatment of the vein occurs outside the body and the vein is rinsed before use as a bypass graft,
the amount of systemic exposure to E2F Decoy is minimal. To date, the safety profile of E2F Decoy treatment has
been excellent.

e One-time Treatment: Neointimal hyperplasia, the major underlying cause of graft failure, occurs primarily during
the first two weeks following surgery. Because E2F Decoy is present during this period, a one-time treatment is
sufficient,

e No Change in Surgical Technigue: The treatment does not require any alteration of surgical technique during vein
harvest or implantation.

e No Change in Standard Operating Room Equipment: There is no change with respect to other standard equipment
in the operating room. E2F Decoy treatment can be administered whether the bypass patient is on a heart-lung
bypass machine or not.

E2F Decoy: U.S. Regulatory Status

We are seeking FDA approval and have received Fast Track status for the use of E2F Decoy to prevent the failure of
bypass grafts. Prior to obtaining the unfavorable results from our PREVENT III trial, the FDA agreed that satisfactory results
from the two Phase 3 clinical trials, PREVENT 11l and PREVENT IV, would be sufficient to support an approval for prevention
of bypass graft failure, provided that after approval we monitor CABG patients up to five years after enroliment to track major
cardiac events to confirm a positive treatment effect. We and BMS are planning to meet by the end of March 2005 with the FDA
prior to unblinding the data from PREVENT IV. Whether we unblind and announce our PREVENT IV data prior to the end of
March, as was previously anticipated, will depend on the timing and results of our meeting with the FDA.




E2F Decoy Clinical Trials for CABG
E2F Decoy: Phase 3 CABG Trial

We have completed the treatment phase of a randomized, double blind, placebo-controlled Phase 3 clinical trial, called
PREVENT 1V, involving approximately 2,400 patients undergoing CABG at over 100 centers. Each patient had to require at
least two vein grafts during their CABG surgery. Patients were randomized to undergo a one-time vein graft treatment with E2F
Decoy or placebo. Patients were evaluated for clinical signs and safety at 30 days. The primary endpoint is the percent reduction
in the incidence of critical graft stenosis between the E2F Decoy treated and placebo groups. Critical graft stenosis is defined in
PREVENT IV as blockage of the graft of 75 percent or greater as measured by quantitative coronary angiography at 12 months.
Safety will be assessed by monitoring adverse events, post-operative complications and laboratory abnormalities. PREVENT TV
completed patient enrollment in August 2003,

E2F Decoy: Post-Approval CABG Confirmatory Study

The FDA is requiring us to conduct a post-approval confirmatory study. This study will include approximately 2,400
patients in the PREVENT IV trial plus an additional 600 CABG patients. We completed enrollment of the additional 600 CABG
patients in October 2003. We will follow these 3,000 CABG patients for up to five years monitoring annually the incidence of
death, heart attack and repeat CABG surgery.

E2F Decoy: Phase 2 CABG Trial

In 2001, we completed a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase 2 clinical trial, called PREVENT 11,
which investigated the safety and ease of incorporation of E2F Decoy treatment into the procedure. Two hundred patients were
enrolled and were randomized evenly between the E2F Decoy-treated arm and the placebo group. Among the entry criteria, each
patient must have required two or more vein grafts. An efficacy endpoint in the study was the incidence of critical graft stenosis at
12 months after CABG surgery as measured by quantitative coronary angiography. The Stanford University School of Medicine
Core Cardiology Laboratory analyzed our results in a blinded fashion.

In the PREVENT II clinical trial we observed a statistically significant relative reduction in graft failure in a per graft
analysis defined as graft stenosis of 75 percent or more in the E2F Decoy-treated group compared to the untreated patients. A
number of patients returned for an angiogram earlier than the specified 12-month timeframe because they experienced adverse
symptoms. When those patients returning early for an angiogram are included in the analysis, as they will be for our analysis of
the PREVENT 1V clinical trial, the relative reduction in graft failure increased from 30 percent to 32 percent and the p-value
improved from 0.03 to 0.02. A p-value is a measure of the probability that a value greater than or equal to the observed value
occurred strictly by chance. A lower p-value indicates greater confidence in the result. The results of this study demonstrate a
statistically significant reduction in the blockages that lead to graft failure.

We subsequently performed an analysis of the angiographic results in which patients were categorized by quartile (i.e.,
0 percent to 25 percent, 25 percent to 50 percent, 50 percent to 75 percent or 75 percent to 100 percent blockage) according to
their graft with the most blockage. The purpose of this more sensitive analysis was to examine the benefit of E2F Decoy on a per
patient basis. This analysis revealed a statistically significant difference in favor of E2F Decoy treatment (p=0.006).

In addition, in a subgroup of patients we measured the overall thickening of the vein graft wall as an index of graft
remodeling using intravascular ultrasound, or IVUS. Because IVUS can be dangerous to patients with grafts that are diseased,
only grafts without discase were selected for this subgroup to minimize any risk to the patient. Excluding diseased grafts from this
analysis imposes a bias against




seeing a treatment effect by E2F Decoy, because the greatest treatment benefit between the E2F Decoy and placebo groups
should be observed in the most diseased grafts. Notwithstanding this adverse bias, the results show a statistically significant
reduction in graft wall volume in the E2F Decoy group (p=0.005) at 12 months after surgery, suggesting that E2F Decoy has a
potent inhibitory effect on the formation of neointimal hyperplasia.

In summary, this Phase 2 clinical trial demonstrated a statistically significant reduction of critical graft stenosis in E2F
Decoy treated patients in a per graft analysis of angiograms obtained 12 months after treatment. Further, the angiographic data,
when analyzed on a per patient basis by quartile, showed a highly statistically significant difference in favor of E2F Decoy
treatment. These two analyses support that E2F Decoy treatment may prevent the pathology that causes graft failure. The IVUS
data, which demonstrated a significant reduction in graft wall volume among E2F Decoy treated patients, supports that E2F
Decoy acts by redirecting the graft biology away from a build up of neointimal hyperplasia and toward arterialization of the vein
graft creating a bypass vein graft that will last longer. In addition, in this Phase 2 clinical trial, E2F Decoy was shown to be safe.

E2F Decoy for the Prevention of Arterio-Venous Graft Failure
AV Graft Failure

In 2001, there were more than 300,000 patients in the United States with severe kidney disease known as end-stage renal
disease, which require vascular access for dialysis treatment. Approximately 100,000 patients per year receive new or revised AV
grafts. An AV graft composed of a synthetic material, a plastic known as polytetrafluoroethylene is used to connect an artery and
vein in the arm of the dialysis patient.

Over half of these AV grafts fail within six months and 95 percent fail within 24 months. The majority of these failures
are due to narrowing and blockage at the venous connection. The primary cause of failure of these grafts is neointimal
hyperplasia, similar to that seen in bypass vein grafts. According to the 1999 Annual Report of the United States Renal Data
System, the leading cause of morbidity in these patients is related to vascular access placement and the resulting complications.
Failure of vascular access conduits accounts for 25 percent of the hospitalizations of these patients and costs an estimated
$1 billion annually in the United States alone.

E2F Decoy: Phase 1/2 AV Graft Trial

In May 2004, we initiated enrollment for a Phase 1/2 clinical trial, called PREVENT V, investigating the use of E2F
Decoy to prevent the failure of AV grafts in the first half of 2004. Enrollment of approximately 60 patient placebo-controlled trial
was completed in late 2004, and the patients were evenly divided between E2F Decoy treated and untreated groups. We believe
the high and rapid failure rate of AV grafts should permit us to conduct smaller and faster clinical trials than is typically required
for other indications. Preliminary data from PREVENT V are expected to be reported late in the first half of 2005.

E2F Decoy: Clinical Trials for Peripheral Bypass Graft Failures
E2F Decoy: Phase 3 PBG Trial

In December 2004, we released top-line data from PREVENT 111, our Phase 3 clinical trial of E2F Decoy in peripheral
bypass graft failures, announcing that the trial did not meet its primary or secondary endpoints but that E2F Decoy was generally
well tolerated. Further analysis, however, showed that secondary patency in treated grafts was improved over the 12-month study
period in a statistically significant manner (p-value = 0.016). Secondary patency, a measure defined by and commonly used by the
vascular surgical community to evaluate peripheral grafts, assesses the ability to preserve flow through the graft allowing the use
of additional procedures over time. The study steering




committee had pre-specified secondary patency as an important analysis, although it was not included as an endpoint in the study
protocol. More grafts treated with E2F Decoy were in place and functioning at the end of the 12-month study period than those
treated with placebo. The relative risk reduction was 19.5 percent. These data suggest that E2F Decoy had biological activity in
this Phase 3 trial. Despite these additional data, we do not expect to seek regulatory approval for peripheral bypass graft failure at
this time.

PREVENT III was a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase 3 clinical trial involving approximately 1,400
patients who underwent PBG surgery across approximately 80 centers. Patients were randomized to undergo a one-time treatment
with E2F Decoy or placebo. The primary endpoint was the time to the first procedure performed to improve blood flow through a
failed or failing graft or an amputation of the treated limb within the 12 months following surgery. To determine if and when a
graft failed, patients were assessed at 1, 3, 6, and 12 months after bypass surgery.

In this trial, technical failures were excluded from the primary endpoint analysis. Technical failures sometimes occur
during or shortly after the bypass graft surgery and are associated with limitations of the vein graft, insufficient blood flow into
and out of the graft, or the surgical procedure. These types of failures occur before neointimal hyperplasia develops and are
therefore not expected to be impacted by E2F Decoy treatment. A panel of vascular surgeons reviewed in a blinded manner all
cases where the graft was repaired to determine which were technical failures. Safety was assessed by monitoring adverse events,
post-operative complications, and laboratory abnormalities.

NF-kB Decoy for the Treatment of Eczema
Eczema

Characterized by itchiness, redness and thickening of the skin, eczema, which afflicts about 15 million people in the
United States, is often associated with elevated levels of immunoglobulin E, or IgE, and a personal or family history of allergies
and asthma. While topical corticosteroids are currently used to treat eczema, chronic use is limited due to their potential for
significant side effects. Topical calcineurin inhibitors have also shown potential in the treatment of this disease; however these
potent immunosuppressive agents have yet to produce long-term safety data. In our preclinical studies, NF-kB Decoy was
delivered to intact skin using several easy-to-manufacture, inexpensive formulations and was effective in reducing the swelling
and inflammation associated with eczema with minimal side effects. Clinical trials will demonstrate whether results obtained in
these preclinical studies will be indicative of future results.

NF-KB Decoy: A Potential Treatment for Eczema

The transcription factor Nuclear Factor Kappa B, or NF-kB, is an important regulator of many genes involved in the
control of inflammation, immune response, and cell apoptosis or cell death.

The family members of NF-kB fall into two major groups: complexes which are capable of turning on the inflammation
genes, and a complex which is not capable of turning on the inflammation genes regulated by this transcription factor and has an
anti-inflammatory effect. Blockade of both groups of NF-kB halts not only the inflammatory response but also the anti-
inflammatory response.

We have developed a TF decoy that binds to the NF-kB transcription factor with a high degree of specificity. In
addition, our NF-k B Decoy preferentially blocks the complexes responsible for turning on the inflammatory genes. We have
studied in numerous preclinical models the efficacy of this NF-kB Decoy. The decoy preferentially blocks the complexes of NF-
kB most responsible for turning on the pro-inflammatory genes and reduces swelling significantly compared to a control decoy or
a decoy that blocks both complexes of NF-kB. These results demonstrate the greater potential efficacy of our NF-kB Decoy. In
preclinical models of inflammatory bowel disease and ulcerative colitis, NF-kB Decoy has




been shown to reduce inflammation of the gut and reverse weight loss. Inflammatory bowel disease and ulcerative colitis affect
more than 700,000 patients in the United States. Similarly, NF-kB Decoy has shown preclinical efficacy in a chronic rheumatoid
arthritis model. Treatment with a single injection with NF-kB Decoy significantly reduced the swelling in our model.

NF-kB Decoy: Phase 1/2 Eczema Trial

In January 2005, we announced the filing of an investigational new drug application, or IND, with the FDA to begin a
Phase 1/2, 75-patient clinical trial of NF-kB for atopic dermatitis, also known as eczema. This is the first of two Phase 1/2 trials to
be initiated. Our second trial will be conducted outside the United States and is expected to be initiated in the first half of 2005 in
a similar-size patient population.

Our Preclinical Programs
Cancer Decoys

It is well established scientifically that cancer cells have abnormal gene expression patterns compared with normal cells.
Many gene-expression analyses are undertaken with the notion that the key target genes will be abnormal or over expressed, and
that inhibition of these over-expressed genes will be beneficial. However, we believe that the very large number of genes related
to cancer are controlled by a limited number of transcription factors that are overactive in many human cancers. We believe that
these transcription factors offer the most direct and promising targets for treating cancer.

We have focused our cancer decoy efforts on the transcription factor, hypoxia-inducible factor, or HIF, which has been
identified as an excellent target in oncology. HIF is a key transcription factor regulator of the response to hypoxia, or a lack of
sufficient oxygen, that is activated in a broad range of cancers including brain, breast, cervical, esophageal and ovarian cancers.
Chronic hypoxia is associated with angiogenesis (growth of blood vessels to feed the tumors) and tumor progression. Moreover,
HIF activity is correlated with treatment failure and mortality. HIF plays a key role in tumor progression, turning on not only the
genes required for angiogenesis, such as vascular endothelial growth factor, or VEGF (a validated target for anti-tumor therapy),
but also the genes that allow the cell to adapt to hypoxia and survive, such as growth factors and energy/metabolism genes. Thus,
blockade of HIF will inhibit not only angiogenesis but also tumor growth and survival making it an attractive target for certain
cancers. In preliminary preclinical studies of pancreatic, colon and lung tumor, our HIF Decoy showed down-regulation of VEGF
and tumor growth inhibition as monotherapy and an additive effect in combination with Avastin™ and 5-fluorouracil.

While not currently the focus of our cancer program, we believe that both E2F and NF-kB are also excellent targets for
anticancer drugs. :

Corgentech Decoy Trust

Our research group has established a unique and proprietary approach to rapidly identify and analyze the expression
patterns and regulatory regions of human genes in order to identify key target transcription factors, transcription factor binding
sites and to design potential TF decoys. This continuously expanding and updated dataset is our Decoy Trust that enables us to
rapidly generate and optimize TF decoys. We have filed several patent applications on this improved method for target selection
and decoy design and optimization.

Corporate Strategy

Our objective is to create a fully-integrated biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery, development and
commercialization of TF decoys. Our initial focus is in the areas of cardiovascular




disease, inflammatory disease, such as eczema, and cancer which we believe represent large market opportunities with unmet
medical needs. Key elements of our strategy include:

o Maximize Commercial Potential of E2F Decoy. Assuming satisfactory clinical data from PREVENT IV, a
significant portion of our efforts will go toward preparing for the registration and commercial launch of the product
as well as building a sales force with BMS. We are also focused on completing our clinical trial studying E2F
Decoy treatment to prevent the failure of arterio-venous grafts.

e Conduct Two Clinical Trials for NF-kB for Eczema. We intend to conduct two clinical trials for eczema—one in
the United States and one abroad—both of which are planned to begin in the first half of 2005.

e Develop Additional TF Decoys. We have designed TF decoys for inflammatory diseases and cancer. We will
conduct additional preclinical testing and select our next product candidate by the end of 2005. Leveraging our
proprietary technologies, we will develop additional TF decoys.

Sales and Marketing

Our plan is to develop our own specialized domestic sales and marketing infrastructure to commercialize E2F Decoy
and other products that we develop in the future. As part of our collaboration with BMS, we expect to focus our sales and
marketing efforts for E2F Decoy on cardiothoracic surgeons. This surgical specialty in the United States is relatively small. We
estimate that there are approximately 3,300 cardiothoracic surgeons in the United States. These surgeons perform most of the
CABG surgeries as well as the placement of AV grafts. Equally important, these surgeons are concentrated in a small group of
hospitals. For example, we estimate that CABG surgery is performed at approximately 1,000 hospitals in the United States, yet
about 660 of those hospitals account for 90 percent of the patients. Because of the small size of our target professional audience in
the United States and their location in hospitals, we believe that we can best serve this market through a relatively small,
dedicated specialty sales force. We expect that this sales force will consist of approximately 50 to 65 representatives.

Qutside the United States, we currently plan to market and sell our products that receive regulatory approval through
established industry participants. We have granted BMS exclusive commercialization rights with respect to E2F Decoy outside
the United States. However, we may establish our own sales and marketing organization for future products in key markets,
including the European Union.

In the future, we expect some of our products will compete in markets with larger physician audiences requiring a more
sizable sales force. We will form partnerships with other companies where partnering offers advantages in marketing reach and
leverages existing physician relationships. In hospital-based sales markets and other markets that involve a physician audience
that can be served by a specialty sales force, we expect to reserve a significant role in marketing for ourselves.

Manufacturing

We do not own facilities for the manufacture of material for clinical or commercial use and intend to rely on contract
manufacturers to produce such products initially. We have personnel experienced in outsourced manufacturing to oversee the
production of E2F Decoy and future products that we may develop.

The manufacturing process for E2F Decoy consists of the chemical synthesis and purification of each of the two short

strands of DNA and the combination of these two strands to form the active pharmaceutical ingredient, E2F Decoy. Each of these
steps involves a relatively common chemical
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engineering process similar to small molecule manufacture. The raw materials that are required to manufacture E2F Decoy are
generally available from a number of suppliers.

We rely on third parties to supply us with E2F Decoy and its related device. The manufacture of the two strands
comprising E2F Decoy is currently performed by Avecia Biotechnology. Most of the clinical supply of the two strands
comprising E2F Decoy was synthesized at Avecia's facility in Milford, Massachusetts. More recent supplies of clinical materials
have been sourced from Avecia's plant in Grangemouth, Scotland. In December 27, 2004, we entered into an agreement with
Avecia Limited for the manufacture of: (a) E2F single strand intermediates, (b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and
hybridized duplex products, and (c¢) HIF-Decoy single strand intermediates. We do not have agreements with these third parties
which obligate them to provide us with any products for commercial sales. On March 11, 2005 we amended our agreement with
Avecia Limited of December 27, 2004. The amendment extended by one month the period during which Avecia would
manufacture certain materials for an additional payment by us of $1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw materials. The
agreement was previously amended on March 4, 2005 to specify the amount of reimbursement to be paid by us for previously
used raw materials. The agreement does not provide for the production of material for commercial sale.

The two strands that comprise E2F Decoy are combined and filled into vials by Hollister-Stier at its facility in Spokane,
Washington. We are also negotiating with Hollister-Stier to supply our commercial needs.

With respect to the drug delivery device, most of the components are fabricated for us by third parties. The pressure
syringe component of our delivery device, the most complex component, is manufactured by Merit Medical Systems. This
component is approved on a worldwide basis. We are also negotiating with Merit Medical Systems to supply our commercial
needs. We have contracted with Cardinal Health Inc. for the manufacture of the other components of the device, the provision of
sterilization services, and the assembly of our products' components into a final kit.

It is possible that either we or BMS may perform some of these functions in the future.
License Agreements
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company

In October 2003, we entered into agreements with BMS to develop, manufacture and commercialize E2F Decoy for the
prevention of bypass graft failure, AV graft failure and for other animal and human uses. Under the terms of the agreements:

¢ Upon execution of the collaboration arrangement in October 2003, BMS paid us $45 million, consisting of
$25 million in consideration for license and distribution rights granted to BMS and $20 million for 2,079,002 shares
of our Series D preferred stock;

e BMS will co-promote E2F Decoy with us in the United States and will share equally with us in profits and losses
from the commercialization of E2F Decoy products in the United States, with BMS having the right to record all
United States product sales;

e BMS will commercialize E2F Decoy outside the United States pursuant to an exclusive license and pay us a royalty
on net sales;

e BMS will fund a majority of the ongoing costs of developing E2F Decoy for graft failure, including costs incurred

in connection with performing nonclinical and clinical studies of E2F Decoy for graft failure indications as well as
costs of certain related manufacturing, supply and other activities;
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s BMS is potentially obligated to pay us up to $148.5 million in milestone payments based on the achievement of
worldwide regulatory submissions and approvals for CABG and AV graft indications of E2F Decoy;

e BMS is potentially obligated to pay us up to $320 million in milestone payments based upon attainment of agreed
upon sales levels of E2F Decoy; and

e BMS may terminate the collaboration relationship in whole or in part upon six months prior notice.

Under the agreements, each party will report its development costs incurred on a quarterly basis and the parties will
make reconciling payments to effect the agreed apportionment of such costs after the end of each quarter.

Under the agreements, the parties' sharing of profits and losses from the commercialization of E2F Decoy in the United
States and the payment of royalties to us by BMS based on net sales of E2F Decoy outside the United States extends, on a
country-by-country basis, until the later of 10 years after commercial launch or the expiration of the patent rights licensed to BMS
in each particular country.

The collaboration is governed by a joint steering committee, consisting of an equal number of our representatives and
BMS representatives. There are also working groups with representation from both parties that have responsibility over
development and regulatory, manufacturing, finance and commercialization matters. Ultimate decision-making authority is vested
in us as to some matters and in BMS as to other matters. A third category of decisions require the approval of both us and BMS.
Outside the United States, ultimate decision-making authority as to most matters is vested in BMS.

The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University

We have an agreement with The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University, or Stanford, for an
exclusive worldwide license under patents concerning the use of pressure to deliver TF decoys and other therapeutics into cells.
We have the right to grant sublicenses under this agreement. In exchange for the rights licensed from Stanford, we paid Stanford
an up-front license fee of $50,000 and issued Stanford 38,315 shares of our common stock. In addition, through December 31,
2004 we have paid Stanford $1,642,500 in royalty payments, for the achievement of milestones and sublicense revenue. We also
agreed to pay Stanford an additional $150,000 upon FDA approval of a pressure delivery device. We further agreed to pay
Stanford an annual minimum royalty of $20,000 per year for the life of the agreement. We also agreed to pay royalties to Stanford
based on net sales of TF decoys and other products using pressure technology sold by us, our affiliates or sublicensees. Our
royalty obligation extends on a country-by-country basis until the later of seven years, if no licensed patent issues, or expiration of
the last-to-expire patent licensed from Stanford. In addition, we agreed to pay sublicense revenues to Stanford with respect to any
upfront payments and research, development, or regulatory milestone payments, which includes such payments from BMS, that.
we receive for TF decoys and other products using pressure technology. There are no other milestone payments due to Stanford
under this agreement. Upon the expiration of the last-to-expire patent, the agreement expires and we have no further royalty
obligation to Stanford.

The Brigham and Women's Hospital, Inc.

We have an agreement with The Brigham and Women's Hospital, Inc., or BWH, for an exclusive worldwide license
under patents and know-how concerning TF decoys and other therapeutics to treat and prevent diseases. Subject to the prior
approval of BWH, we have the right to grant sublicenses under this agreement. In exchange for the rights licensed from BWH, we
paid BWH an up-front license fee of $50,000 and issued BWH 56,250 shares of our common stock. In addition, through
December 31, 2004 we have paid BWH $1,642,500 in royalty payments, for the achievement of milestones and
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sublicense revenue. We also agreed to pay BWH an additional $150,000 upon FDA approval of E2F Decoy. We further agreed to
pay BWH an annual minimum royalty of $20,000 per year for the life of the agreement. We also agreed to pay royalties to BWH
based on net sales of TF decoys sold by us, our affiliates or sublicensees. Our royalty obligation extends on a country-by-country
basis until the later of seven years, if no licensed patent issues, or the expiration of the last-to-expire patent licensed from BWH.
In addition, we agreed to pay sublicense revenues to BWH with respect to any upfront payments and research, development or
regulatory filing milestones payments, which includes such payments from BMS, or license maintenance fees that we receive for
TF decoys. There are no other milestone payments due to BWH under this agreement. Upon the expiration of the last-to-expire
patent, the agreement expires and we have no further royalty obligation to BWH.

Cyclacel Limited

We have an agreement with Cyclacel Limited, or Cyclacel, for potential use to assist in the systemic delivery of TF
Decoys. The license grants us use of Cyclacel's proprietary Penetratin delivery technology with TF Decoys. In exchange for the
rights licensed from Cyclacel, we paid Cyclacel an up-front payment and will pay Cyclacel milestone payments and royalties if
licensed products are commercialized. The license fee was charged to research and development.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and maintain proprietary protection for our product candidates,
technology and know-how, to operate without infringing on the proprietary rights of others and to prevent others from infringing
our proprietary rights. Our policy is to seek to protect our proprietary position by, among other methods, filing United States and
foreign patent applications related to our proprietary technology, inventions and improvements that are important to the
development of our business. We also rely on trade secrets, know-how, continuing technological innovation and in-licensing
opportunities to develop and maintain our proprietary position.

As of December 31, 2004, we had 41 issued United States and foreign patents and 41 pending United States and foreign
patent applications. Most patents and patent applications can be roughly grouped into two families: pressure-mediated delivery of
TF decoys, and in vivo use of TF decoys, licensed from Stanford and BWH, respectively. The patents in these families expire
between 2013 and 2016.

Specifically, our patent portfolio includes four issued United States patents, two of which provide broad coverage for the
delivery of TF decoys, including our E2F Decoy, to tissues using pressure. The pressure-mediated delivery technology is also
protected by issued patents in Europe (covering 16 countries), Australia, China, Hong Kong, and Singapore, and claimed in
pending patent applications in several additional countries, including Canada and Japan.

The patent family directed to the in vivo use of TF decoy technology includes two pending United States patent
applications. Foreign patent applications are pending in Europe. The sequence of our E2F Decoy was earlier disclosed in the
scientific literature and therefore a composition of matter claim is not available. Our patent portfolio, however, includes an issued
United States patent that covers a method for preventing formation of neointimal thickening leading to restenosis and vessel
occlusion with any double-stranded oligonucleotide decoy that binds to the transcription factor, E2F, regardless of the sequence
of such decoy.

In addition, we have filed two patent applications claiming the use of proprietary statistical methods to correlate
transcription factors and their target genes, allowing the creation of a TF Decoy Trust and the use of proprietary statistical
methods to identify novel transcription factor targets based on their target genes being inappropriately turned on and causing a
medical condition. We have also
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filed patent applications for decoy molecules targeting various transcription factors, pursuing composition of matter claims.

The patent positions of biotechnology companies like ours are generally uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions. Our ability to maintain and solidify our proprietary position for our technology will depend on our success in obtaining
effective claims and enforcing those claims once granted. We do not know whether any of our patent applications or those patent
applications that we license will result in the issuance of any patents. Our issued patents and those that may issue in the future, or
those licensed to us, may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, and the rights granted under any issued patents may not
provide us with proprietary protection or competitive advantages against competitors with similar technology. Furthermore, our
competitors may independently develop similar technologies or duplicate any technology developed by us. Because of the
extensive time required for development, testing and regulatory review of a potential product, it is possible that, before any of our
products can be commercialized, any related patent may expire or remain in force for only a short period following
commercialization, thereby reducing any advantage of the patent.

We rely on trade secrets to protect our technology in addition to patents, especially where patent protection is believed
not to be appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We attempt to protect our proprietary
technology, in part, with appropriate agreements with our employees, consultants and collaborators. There can be no assurance
that these agreements will provide meaningful protection, that these agreements will not be breached, that we will have an
adequate remedy for any such breach, or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become known or independently developed by a
third party. Our commercial success will depend in part on not infringing upon the proprietary rights of third parties and on not
breaching the technology licenses pursuant to which we have obtained certain of our proprietary rights, but we may be infringing
on third party rights. It is uncertain whether the issuance of any third party patent would require us to alter our products or
processes, obtain licenses or cease certain activities. Our breach of our license agreements or failure to obtain a license to
technology that we may require to discover, develop or commercialize our future products may have a material adverse impact on
us. One or more third party patents or patent applications may conflict with patent applications to which we have rights. Any such
conflict may substantially reduce the coverage of any rights that may issue from the patent applications to which we have rights. If
third parties prepare and file patent applications in the United States that also claim technology to which we have rights, we may
have to participate in interference proceedings in the United States Patent and Trademark Office to determine priority of
invention.

Competition

The development and commercialization of new drugs is highly competitive. We will face competition with respect to
E2F Decoy, NF-kB Decoy, cancer decoys and any products we may develop or commercialize in the future from major
pharmaceutical companies, specialty pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies worldwide.

The key competitive factors affecting the success of E2F Decoy treatment are likely to be the efficacy, safety profile and
price of E2F Decoy as well as existing therapies for the prevention or treatment of cardiovascular disease. The commercial
success of E2F Decoy will depend upon the results of the clinical trials of the product, the product label and experience with the
product in the commercial marketplace. We have not yet determined the price for E2F Decoy treatment and do not expect to do
so before commercial launch.
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If E2F Decoy receives marketing approval for the prevention of CABG failure or AV graft failure, there will be indirect
and direct competition.

CABG

With respect to indirect competition, there are alternative procedures and /or treatments that could affect the size of the
CABG market. The use of drug eluting stents could reduce the number of patients requiring CABG surgery. The use of internal
mammary arteries and radial arteries could reduce the number of patients requiring E2F Decoy. The use of grafts composed of
synthetic materials could reduce the number of patients requiring E2F Decoy. In addition, the use of drugs to control cholesterol
and similar agents may reduce the number of patients who suffer from cardiovascular disease and thus require CABG surgery.
Further, a number of drugs are being tested to reduce restenosis in arteries that, if proven safe and effective, could reduce the
number of patients who suffer from cardiovascular disease and thus require CABG surgery.

With respect to direct competition, there are no pharmaceuticals currently approved to prevent the failure of bypass vein
grafts. In some instances, surgical interventions such as angioplasty, atherectomy or drugs to dissolve blood clots may be used to
revise or fix a failing bypass graft. In other instances, a subsequent bypass grafting operation may be possible to ameliorate the
effects of the failing bypass graft. A few companies may be conducting or are contemplating conducting clinical trials to prevent
the failure of bypass grafts. If the commercialization of E2F Decoy is successful for this indication, it can be expected that other
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies will seek to enter into this market by introducing alternative therapies.

AV Grafts

With respect to indirect competition, there are a number of therapies approved or being studied that could reduce the
rate of kidney failure or improve renal function thereby delaying or obviating the need for dialysis and an AV graft. For example,
angiotensin converting enzyme, or ACE, inhibitors, and possibly angiotensin receptor blockers, are medications that may decrease
the rate of decline in renal function. An alternative procedure to hemodialysis is peritoneal dialysis in which fluids are pumped
into the abdominal cavity of the patient avoiding the need for an AV graft.

With respect to direct competition, there are a number of medical devices approved or being studied that provide
alternative access for dialysis. Hemodialysis can also be achieved using a direct connection between an artery and a vein, called
an arterio-venous fistula. The National Kidney Foundation has recommended that 40 percent to 50 percent of these patients
recetve an AV fistula because they have a lower failure rate than AV graft. AV fistula rates have increased by 35 percent since the
National Kidney Foundation initiative was introduced in 1997; however, AV fistulas still represent only 24 percent of all vascular
access procedures in the United States, largely due to the extended time required for fistulas to mature before they can be used for
dialysis and the failure of many fistulas to mature. Unlike AV grafts which can often be used in two to three weeks, AV fistula
access requires a minimum of four weeks to mature before it can be used and it is highly recommended that they be allowed to
mature 12 to 16 weeks prior to use. Furthermore, 30 percent to 50 percent of AV fistulas fail to mature and can never be used for
dialysis. Other types of access that avoid an AV graft are catheters near the collarbone or internal jugular catheters. Both are
generally temporary access conduits. There are also a number of drug-based therapies under investigation by other companies. If
the commercialization of E2F Decoy is successful for this indication, it can be expected that other pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies will seek to enter into this market by introducing alternative therapies.
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Government Regulation

Government authorities in the United States, at the federal, state, and local level, and other countries extensively
regulate, among other things, the safety, efficacy, research, development, testing, manufacture, storage, record-keeping, labeling,
promotion, advertising, distribution, marketing and export and import of pharmaceutical products such as those we are
developing.

United States Government Regulation

In the United States, the FDA regulates drugs under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and implementing
regulations. If we fail to comply with the applicable United States requirements at any time during the product development
process, clinical testing, and the approval process or after approval, we may become subject to administrative or judicial
sanctions. These sanctions could include the FDA's refusal to approve pending applications, license suspension or revocation,
withdrawal of an approval, warning letters, product recalls, product seizures, total or partial suspension of production or
distribution, injunctions, fines, civil penalties or criminal prosecution. Any agency enforcement action could have a material
adverse effect on us.

Our products are considered by FDA to be combinations of a drug and a device. Both the drug and the device are
subject to separate FDA review and approval or clearance. If FDA denies approval or clearance of either component, our ability
to market our products could be significantly delayed or precluded.

The steps required before a drug may be marketed in the United States include:

e completion of preclinical laboratory tests, animal studies and formulation studies under FDA's good laboratory
practices regulations;

e submission to the FDA of an Investigational New Drug, or IND, application for human clinical testing, which must
become effective before human clinical trials may begin;

¢ performance of adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the product for
each proposed indication;

e submission to the FDA of a New Drug Application, or NDA,

o satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection of the manufacturing facility or facilities at which the product is
produced to assess compliance with current good manufacturing practice, or cGMP; and

e FDA review and approval of the NDA before any commercial marketing, sale or shipment of the product.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluations of product chemistry, toxicity, and formulation, as well as animal studies.
The results of the preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, are submitted to the FDA as part
of an IND application. The FDA requires a 30-day waiting period after the filing of each IND application before clinical tests
may begin, in order to ensure that human research subjects will not be exposed to unreasonable health risks. An IND will
automatically become effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless before that time the FDA has placed the IND on clinical
hold. In that case, the IND sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding FDA concerns or questions before clinical trials
can proceed. Submission of an IND may result in the FDA not allowing clinical trials to commence or not allowing the trial to
commence on the terms originally specified in the IND.

Clinical trials involve the administration of the investigational product to human subjects under the supervision of

qualified investigators. Clinical trials are conducted under protocols detailing, among other things, the objectives of the study, the
parameters to be used in monitoring safety and the
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effectiveness criteria to be evaluated. Each protocol must be submitted to the FDA as part of the IND. Each trial must be
reviewed and approved by an independent Institutional Review Board, or [RB, before it can begin and the trial is subject to IRB
oversight. The FDA, the IRB or we may discontinue a clinical trial at any time for various reasons, including a belief that the
subjects are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk. Clinical testing also must satisfy extensive good clinical practice
requirements and the requirements for informed consent.

Clinical trials typically are conducted in three sequential phases, but the phases may overlap or be combined. Phase 1
trials usually involve the initial introduction of the investigational drug into humans to evaluate the product's safety, dosage
tolerance, pharmacodynamics, and, if possible, to gain an early indication of its effectiveness.

Phase 2 trials usually involve controlled trials in a limited patient population to:
s evaluate dosage tolerance and appropriate dosage;

o identify possible adverse effects and safety risks; and

e evaluate preliminarily the efficacy of the drug for specific indications.

Phase 3 trials usually further evaluate clinical efficacy and test further for safety in an expanded patient population.
Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 testing may not be completed successfully within any specified period, if at all. Furthermore, the
FDA or we may suspend or terminate clinical trials at any time on various grounds, including a finding that the subjects or
patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Assuming successful completion of the required clinical testing, the results of the preclinical studies and of the clinical
studies, together with other detailed information, including extensive manufacturing information and information on the
composition of the product, are submitted to the FDA in the form of an NDA requesting approval to market the product for one or
more specified indications. The FDA reviews an NDA to determine, among other things, whether a product is safe and effective
for its intended use.

As part of the Food and Drug Modernization Act of 1997, Congress established a statutory program for the approval of
Fast Track products in order to ensure the availability of safe and effective drugs, biologics and medical devices by expediting the
FDA review process for new products. A Fast Track product is defined as a new drug or biologic intended for the treatment of a
serious or life-threatening condition that demonstrates the potential to address unmet medical needs for that condition. Under the
Fast Track program, the sponsor of a new drug or biologic may request the FDA to designate the product as a Fast Track product
at any time during the clinical development of the product. The FDA can base approval of a marketing application for a Fast
Track product, on a clinical endpoint, or on another endpoint that is reasonably likely to predict clinical benefit. Fast Track status
may enable accelerated approval and allows for a "rolling submission” of a marketing application. We have received a Fast Track
designation for the use of E2F Decoy to prevent the failure of bypass grafts and the use of E2F Decoy to prevent the failure of
hemodialysis access grafis.

Before approving an application, the FDA will inspect the facility or the facilities at which the product is manufactured,
and will not approve the product unless cGMP compliance is satisfactory. FDA will also inspect the clinical sites at which the
trials were conducted to assess their compliance, and will not approve the product unless compliance with Good Clinical Practice
requirements is satisfactory. If the FDA determines the application demonstrates that the product is safe and effective for the
proposed indication and that the manufacturing process and the manufacturing facilities are acceptable, the FDA will issue an
approval letter. If the FDA determines the application, manufacturing process or manufacturing facilities are not acceptable, the
FDA will outline the deficiencies in the submission and often will request additional testing or information. Notwithstanding
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the submission of any requested additional information, the FDA ultimately may decide that the application does not satisfy the
regulatory criteria for approval and may deny the application, limit the indication for which the drug is approved or require
additional post-approval testing in other requirements.

The testing and approval process requires substantial time, effort, and financial resources, and each may take several
years to complete. The FDA may not grant approval on a timely basis, or at all. We may encounter difficulties or unanticipated
costs in our efforts to secure necessary governmental approvals, which could delay or preclude us from marketing our products.
The FDA may limit the indications for use or place other conditions on any approvals that could restrict the commercial
application of the products. After approval, certain changes to the approved product, such as adding new indications,
manufacturing changes, or additional labeling claims are subject to further FDA review and approval.

If and when regulatory approval of a product is obtained, we will be required to comply with a number of post-approval
requirements. For example, if the FDA approves our initial application for E2F Decoy, the FDA has required and we are
conducting a post-approval confirmatory trial monitoring the CABG patients for up to five years tracking events such as death,
heart attack, repeat CABG and other interventions using a catheter. We also must comply with other regulatory requirements,
including cGMP regulations and adverse event reporting. Holders of an approved NDA are required to report certain adverse
reactions and production problems, if any, to the FDA, to provide updated safety and efficacy information and to comply with
requirements concerning advertising and promotional labeling for their products. Also, quality control and manufacturing
procedures must continue to conform to ¢cGMP after approval. The FDA periodically inspects manufacturing facilities to assess
compliance with cGMP. Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to expend time, money, and effort in the area of production
and quality control to maintain compliance with cGMP and other aspects of regulatory compliance.

We use, and will continue to use in at least the near term, third-party manufacturers to produce our products in clinical
and commercial quantities. Future FDA inspections may identify compliance issues at our facilities or at the facilities of our
contract manufacturers that may disrupt production or distribution, or require substantial resources to correct. In addition,
discovery of problems with a product or the failure to comply with requirements may result in restrictions on a product,
manufacturer, or holder of an approved NDA, including withdrawal or recall of the product from the market or other voluntary or
FDA-initiated action that could delay further marketing. Also, new government requirements may be established that could delay
or prevent regulatory approval of our products under development.

The FDA has advised that the use of E2F Decoy to prevent the failure of hemodialysis access grafts can be studied under
the existing IND covering the study of E2F Decoy for the prevention of bypass graft failure. In addition, the FDA has determined
that the failure of hemodialysis grafts represents a serious medical condition, that there are no adequate pharmaceuticals to
prevent the failure of such grafts and that there is evidence of the potential for E2F Decoy treatment to treat this serious and unmet
medical need. Consequently, the FDA has granted Fast Track status to this new indication for our lead product, affording it the
benefits of close consultation with the FDA and expedited review.

510¢k)
FDA's Center for Drug Evaluation and Research will have primary responsibility for reviewing E2F Decoy. The

pressure device used to deliver the drug is subject to separate review as a medical device by FDA's Center of Devices and
Radiological Health.
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The FDA classifies medical devices into three classes based on the regulatory control deemed necessary by the FDA to
reasonably ensure safety and effectiveness. From lowest to highest level of regulatory control, the three classes are:

o Class I: Subject to general controls, which include: company registration; device listing; manufacturing devices in
accordance with the FDA's Good Manufacturing Practices Quality System Regulation (which cover quality
management and organization, device design, buildings, equipment, purchase and handling of components,
production and process controls, packaging and labeling control, device evaluation, distribution, installation,
complaint handling, servicing and records); labeling devices in accordance with FDA labeling regulations; and
submission of a 510(k) pre-market notification before marketing a device.

o  Class II: Subject to general controls (described in Class I above) and special controls. Special controls may include
special labeling requirements, mandatory performance standards and post-market surveillance.

e Class 1II: Subject to pre-market approval, which includes filing a pre-market approval application (PMA) requiring
the independent demonstration that the new medical device is safe and effective, typically by collecting human
clinical data for the medical device.

In the first quarter of 2005, we plan to submit our 510(k) application to the Center of Devices and Radiological Health
(medical devices) for review and clearance based on the substantial equivalence of our pressure delivery device to legally
marketed predicates including Merit Medical's pressure syringe and DMC Saphenous Vein Distension system. A 510(k) pre-
market notification is a pre-marketing application submitted to the FDA to demonstrate that a medical device is substantially
equivalent to one or more devices that were cleared through a 510(k) notification or to devices that were marketed prior to
May 28, 1976 and for which the FDA has not required a pre-market approval application. The FDA has 90 days to review and act
on our 510(k) notification, although the actual time for FDA review may be significantly longer. If the FDA determines that our
device is not substantially equivalent to one or more pre-existing predicate devices, it could deny our 510(k) application. Under
these circumstances, we would need to request the FDA to classify the pressure device as a Class I or Class II device that can be
marketed without pre-market approval or, failing that, obtain pre-market approval of the pressure device as a Class III device.

Foreign Regulation

In addition to regulations in the United States, we will be subject to a variety of foreign regulations governing clinical
trials and commercial sales and distribution of our products, including E2F Decoy. Whether or not we obtain FDA approval for a
product, we must obtain approval of a product by the comparable regulatory authorities of foreign countries before we can
commence clinical trials or marketing of the product in those countries. The approval process varies from country to country, and
the time may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval. The requirements governing the conduct of clinical trials,
product licensing, pricing and reimbursement vary greatly from country to country.

Under European Union regulatory systems, marketing authorizations may be submitted either under a centralized or
mutual recognition procedure. The centralized procedure provides for the grant of a single marketing authorization that is valid
for all European Union member states. The mutual recognition procedure provides for mutual recognition of national approval
decisions. Under this procedure, the holder of a national marketing authorization may submit an application to the remaining
member states. Within 90 days of receiving the applications and assessment report, each member state must decide whether to
recognize approval.
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In addition to regulations in Europe and the United States, we will be subject to a variety of foreign regulations
governing clinical trials and commercial distribution of our products, including E2F Decoy.

Third Party Reimbursement and Pricing
General

In the United States and elsewhere, sales of therapeutic and other pharmaceutical products are dependent in part on the
availability of reimbursement to the consumer from third party payors, such as government and private insurance plans. In
determining payment rates, third party payors are increasingly scrutinizing the prices charged for medical products and services.
Our products may not be reimbursed by these third party payors at rates sufficient to allow us to sell our products on a
competitive and profitable basis.

In addition, in many foreign markets, including the countries in the European Union, pricing of pharmaceutical products
is subject to governmental control. In the United States, there have been, and we expect that there will continue to be, a number of
federal and state proposals to limit payments for pharmaceuticals by governmental payors. While we cannot predict whether such
legislative or regulatory proposals will be adopted, the adoption of such proposals could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and profitability.

Medicare and Medicaid

Subject to obtaining required marketing approvals from the FDA and other required State approvals, E2F Decoy may be
used by surgeons to prevent the failure of bypass grafts and hemodialysis access conduits. We expect that in the United States a
majority of the bypass graft patients who are treated with E2F Decoy will be Medicare beneficiaries. In addition, private payors
many times look to the Medicare program's treatment of medical technologies when developing their policies. The Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, is the agency within the Department of Health and Human Services that administers
Medicare and will be responsible for both coverage and reimbursement decisions for E2F Decoy when administered to Medicare
beneficiaries during CABG surgery.

In general, Medicare makes a flat pre-determined payment amount for beneficiaries receiving covered inpatient services
in an acute care hospital. This is part of the prospective payment system, known as "PPS." For acute care hospitals, under PPS,
payment for a patient's stay is based on diagnosis-related groups (DRGs), which include reimbursement for all of the covered
services and drugs that are provided during that stay. For each DRG, a relative weight is calculated representing the average
resources required to care for cases in that particular DRG relative to the average resources used to treat cases in all DRGs. DRG
relative weights are recalculated every year to reflect changes in technology and medical practice in a budget neutral manner. We
are currently seeking either to gain additional reimbursement for an existing DRG applicable to CABG or to have a new DRG
with higher reimbursement amount established for CABG when E2F Decoy treatment is used. Under revisions to Medicare Jaw,
CMS provides for an add-on payment for a new medical technology when the existing DRG payment rate is inadequate. To
obtain an add-on payment, a company would be required to show that the technology is "new," that it provides a substantial
improvement to existing treatments and that certain applied payment thresholds have been exceeded. Add-on payments are made
for a period of two to three years. Before additional payments may be made or CMS decides to create a new DRG for CABG
surgery utilizing E2F Decoy treatment, we must demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of E2F Decoy treatment to the FDA.
Further, Medicare coverage is based on our ability to demonstrate that the treatment is "reasonable and necessary” for Medicare
patients. In addition, Congress approved the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003
(Medicare Reform Act),
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which liberalizes eligibility criteria for add-on payments and eliminates budget neutrality requirements for such payments. The
Medicare Reform Act would require CMS first to assign a new technology to an appropriate DRG where the average cost of care
most closely approximates the relative costs of the new technology. Even upon implementation of the legislation, there may
continue to be significant delays in obtaining adequate reimbursement, which would adversely affect market acceptance.

People with severe kidney disease, known as End Stage Renal Disease, or ESRD, also receive Medicare benefits.
Medicare covers about 90 percent of the patients with chronic renal failure who would require dialysis. Under this program,
Medicare pays a fixed fee for the provision of certain services. Certain drugs needed by these patients are also reimbursed by
Medicare under this program. It is our expectation that we will seek coverage for our treatment of patients requiring hemodialysis
access grafts. We expect that such treatment may be performed in an inpatient or outpatient setting for ESRD patients. To the
extent coverage is obtained, we expect to seek payment for services performed in both settings. The decision by Medicare to
reimburse for the use of E2F Decoy to treat these patients will depend on our ability to demonstrate that the E2F Decoy treatment
is "reasonable and necessary" for the treatment of these grafts. In addition, there may be significant delays in obtaining adequate
reimbursement amounts, which will adversely affect market acceptance.

For classification of physician services, the American Medical Association has developed a coding system known as the
Current Procedural Terminology, or CPT. CPT codes are established by the American Medical Association and adopted by the
Medicare program to describe and develop payment amounts for certain physician services. The Medicare physician fee schedule
uses CPT codes (and other codes) as part of the determination of allowable payment amounts to physicians. In determining
appropriate payment amounts for surgeons, CMS is likely to seek guidance from the appropriate surgical societies regarding the
relative technical skill level and complexity of a new surgical procedure. Generally, the designation of a new procedure code for a
new procedure using a new product does not occur until after FDA approval of the product used in the surgery. Codes are
assigned by either the AMA (for CPT codes) or CMS (for Medicare-specific codes) and new codes usually become effective on
January st of each year.

CMS is considering various proposals to change the methods and levels of reimbursement in Medicare. At this point, it
is unclear whether the CMS proposals or Congressional legislation will become effective or the extent to which CMS' proposed
changes or the recently approved Congressional legislation will affect reimbursement for E2F Decoy.

We announced in May 2004 that CMS published a new ICD-9-CM procedure code for "pressurized treatment of venous
bypass graft [conduit] with pharmaceutical substance"” on its website at www.cms.hhs.gov, which will subsequently be published
in the Federal Register. ICD-9-CM procedure codes are used to describe medical procedures performed by physicians and other
healthcare providers.

Commercial Insurers' Payment

In most private insurance plans, the medical benefits provisions include reimbursement for drugs administered during a
medical procedure in the payment amount for the procedure itself. We expect the same reimbursement methodology to be used
for E2F Decoy treatment during CABG surgery. [f private insurers decide to cover E2F Decoy treatment as part of CABG
surgery, they likely will reimburse for the drug in a variety of ways depending on the particular insurance plan and the contract
they have negotiated with surgeons, hospitals and drug suppliers. Like Medicare, commercial insurers have the authority to place
coverage limitations (for example, limitations on indications for use and utilization limits) on drugs like E2F Decoy.
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Financial Information by Business Segment and Geographic Data

We operate in one segment, the discovery, development and commercialization of TF Decoys. During 2002 we did not
have any revenues, and during 2003 and 2004 our only revenue was from our collaboration agreement with BMS. All of our long-
lived assets are located in the United States.
Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had 132 full time employees, 29 of whom hold Ph.D., M.D. or comparable degrees and
28 of whom hold other advanced degrees. Approximately 104 employees are engaged in research and development and 28 in
business development, finance and other administrative functions. Our employees are not represented by any collective
bargaining unit. We believe that we maintain good relations with our employees.

Executive Officers and Key Employees

Our executive officers and other key employees and their respective ages as of December 31, 2004 are:

Name _Age Position
Executive Officers:
John P. McLaughlin........cccoovvivvcincrcneicee, 53  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Richard P. POWers.......c.cc.ccovvevveeviririnieneecieene, 60  Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Todd J. Lorenz, M.D.......c.ccovvvrvrvnnierianininneen, 51  Chief Medical Officer
Patrick A. Broderick ......oooovvvivieecvivee e 46  Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Senior Vice President, Commercial Operations and Business
James Z. Huang......cccooccvivinnniniiin, 39  Development
Leslie M. McEvoy, Ph.D. ..., 44  Senior Vice President, Research
Key Employees:
Nancy Donahue ..., 38  Vice President, Cardiovascular Marketing
Daniel Gennevois, M.D. ....ccoovvvvvnrnienrnrinenen 50  Vice President, Medical Affairs
Patricia Oto, R Ph...ccooooiicinccnccnens 44 Vice President, Regulatory and Quality Assurance
John X. Regan ... 49  Vice President, Manufacturing
Dortan Rinella ....oooveveiver e 56  Vice President, Human Resources
Thomas YOnker........coccuevrimicncnicrcneenenecan 47  Vice President, Project and Alliance Management

Executive Officers

John P. McLaughlin has been our president and chief executive officer, and a member of our board of directors since
January 2000. From December 1997 to September 1999, Mr. McLaughlin was president of Tularik Inc., a biopharmaceutical
company. From September 1987 to December 1997, Mr. McLaughlin held a number of senior management positions at
Genentech, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company, including executive vice president with responsibility for many commercial
functions. From January 1985 to September 1987, Mr. McLaughlin was a partner at a Washington, D.C. law firm specializing in
food and drug law. Mr. McLaughlin served as counsel to various subcommittees in the United States House of Representatives,
where he drafted numerous measures that became FDA laws. Mr, McLaughlin is a co-founder and chairman of the board of
directors of Eyetech Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. He received a B.A. in Government from the University
of Notre Dame and a J.D. from the Catholic University of America.
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Richard P. Powers has been our vice president and chief financial officer since October 2001. From March 1999 to
August 2000, Mr. Powers served as executive vice president and chief financial officer of Eclipse Surgical Technologies, Inc., a
medical device company. From February 1996 to March 1999, Mr. Powers served as executive vice president and chief financial
officer of CardioGenesis Corporation, a medical device company. From January 1981 to August 1995, Mr. Powers held a number
of senior management positions at Syntex Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company, including senior vice president and chief
financial officer. Mr. Powers also currently serves on the board of directors of Airlease Management Services, Inc. Mr. Powers
received a B.S. in Accounting from Canisius College and an M.B.A. from the University of Rochester, New York.

Todd J. Lorenz, M.D. has been our chief medical officer since May 2001. From 1994 to 2001, he was vice president of
medical affairs at Cor Therapeutics, a biopharmaceutical company where he managed clinical development activities. From 1990
to 1994, he served as director of clinical development of Xoma Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company. From 1985 to 1990,
he was in private practice, and also served as a clinical consultant for Highland General Hospital's Department of Endocrinology
in Oakland, California. Dr. Lorenz has a clinical appointment at the University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine.
Dr. Lorenz received a B.A. in Chemistry and an M.D. from Case Western Reserve School of Medicine. Dr. Lorenz completed his
residency in internal medicine at the University of Texas, Southwestern and a fellowship in endocrinology at the University of
California, San Francisco.

Patrick A. Broderick has been our vice president, general counsel and corporate secretary since July 2004, From 2002 to
2004, Mr. Broderick was vice president, secretary and general counsel of DaVita Inc., the largest independent provider of dialysis
services in the United States. From 1999 to 2002, he served as general counsel of COR Therapeutics, Inc., a biotechnology
company. From 1993 to 1998, Mr. Broderick served in a variety of in-house legal positions for McKesson Corporation, a drug
wholesaler, including counsel to PCS Health Systems and Healthcare Delivery Systems, Inc. Prior to joining McKesson, he
served as an attorney at the law firms of Morrison & Foerster and McCutchen, Doyle, Brown and Enersen. He received a B.A.,
summa cum laude, from Harvard College where he was elected to Phi Beta Kappa. Mr. Broderick received a I.D. from Yale Law
School where he was an editor or the Yale Law Journal.

James Z. Huang has been promoted to senior vice president of commercial operations and business development in
February 2005. Previously he was our vice president of business development and commercial operations from September 2002
to January 2005. From June 2000 to August 2002, Mr. Huang was vice president of business development and commercial
operations of Tularik Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. From July 1995 to May 2000, Mr. Huang was product director of
Avandia® and Diabetes and held positions in new product development and worldwide business development at SmithKline
Beecham PLC, now GlaxoSmithKline, a pharmaceutical company. From July 1992 to June 1995, Mr. Huang held various
positions in Bristol-Myers Squibb Company's strategic product planning, managed care and sales and marketing organizations,
and research and development positions at Alza Corporation, now part of Johnson & Johnson Company, a pharmaceutical
company. Mr. Huang received a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley and an M.B.A. from
the Stanford University Graduate School of Business.

Leslie M. McEvoy, Ph.D. has been promoted to senior vice president of research in February 2005. Previously
Dr. McEvoy was our vice president of research from November 2000 to January 2005. From October 1997 to October 2000,
Dr. McEvoy was program director of chemokine research and development and senior principal scientist in the department of
immunobiology at DNAX Research Institute of Molecular and Cellular Biology, Inc. From 1992 to 1997, Dr. McEvoy was a
senior research scientist and principal investigator at the Stanford University School of Medicine. Prior to 1992, Dr. McEvoy held
research positions at Stanford School of Medicine, Lilly Research Laboratories,
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Pennsylvania State University and Clarkson University. Dr. McEvoy received a B.S. in Biology from Clarkson University and a
Ph.D. in Molecular and Cell Biology from Pennsylvania State University.

Key Employees

Nancy Donahue has been our vice president of cardiovascular marketing since March 2004. From 1989 to 2004,
Ms. Donahue held several positions with GlaxoSmithKline, a biopharmaceutical company, working in several product marketing
positions, as well as strategic alliances and sales. Most recently, she served as executive director of Avandia® franchise
marketing. Ms. Donahue holds a B.S. in Marketing from Saint Joseph's University, Philadelphia, PA.

Daniel Gennevois, M.D. has been our vice president of medical affairs since August 2003. From June 2003 to
July 2003, Dr. Gennevois served as senior medical director for Xoma Corporation. From June 2001 to June 2003, Dr. Gennevois
served as executive director and vice president of clinical operations at Dynavax Technologies, a biopharmaceutical company.
From March 1997 to May 2001, he was senior director of clinical research of Roche Bioscience, a subsidiary of F. Hoffmann-La
Roche Ltd., a pharmaceutical company. From November 1995 to March 1997, he served as director of clinical research of Chiron
Vaccines, a business unit of Chiron Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company. From June 1991 to November 1995,
Dr. Gennevois served as director of medical research of Syntex Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company. From 1985 to 1991,
he served as associate director of clinical and business development for American Bioproducts Co., and Scientific Manager for
Porton Products. Dr. Gennevois received a Bachelor degree in Mathematics from Lycee Ampere (Lyon, France) and a Doctor of
Medicine degree from the University of Lyon, Claude Bernard School of Medicine in Lyon, France. Dr. Gennevois completed
clinical training in infectious disease at the Hospital Edouard Herriot, also in Lyon.

Parricia Oto, R.Ph. has been our vice president of regulatory and quality assurance since July 2001. From June 1997 to
June 2001, Ms. Oto was senior director of regulatory affairs at Corixa, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. From 1990 to 1997,
Ms. Oto held various positions in the regulatory affairs and quality assurance departments at Genentech, Inc., including regulatory
manager. From January 1984 to January 1990, Ms. Oto held various quality and manufacturing positions at Syntex Corporation
and Summa Manufacturing Corporation. Ms. Oto received a B.S. in Pharmacy from the University of New Mexico College of
Pharmacy, Albuquerque, New Mexico.

John X. Regan has been our vice president of manufacturing since December 2002. From January 1983 to
December 2002, Mr. Regan held a number of management positions at Genentech, Inc., including senior director of
manufacturing. From 1979 to 1983, Mr. Regan served as formulating chemist of SmithKline Diagnostics, a diagnostics company.
Mr. Regan received a B.S. in Biology from the University of Massachusetts.

Dorian Rinella has been our vice president of human resources since February 2005. From 2003 to 2005, Ms. Rinella
served as vice president, human resources and facilities at Kosan Biosciences. From 1991 to 2003, Ms. Rinella was employed by
SUGEN, Inc. (now Pfizer Inc.), serving in several management positions including senior vice president of operations. Before
joining SUGEN, Ms. Rinella held various positions in human resource management with Doric Development, a real estate
development firm and Bio-Rad Laboratories, a manufacturer and distributor of life science research and clinical products.

Thomas Yonker has been our vice president of project and alliance management since January 2004. From 2001 to 2004
Mr. Yonker was senior director of project management at InterMune Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. From 1998 to 2001,
Mr. Yonker was senior director of project management at Aviron (now Medimmune Inc.), a biopharmaceutical company. From
1994 to 1998, Mr. Yonker was director of project management at Alza Corporation (now Johnson & Johnson), a
biopharmaceutical company. Prior to 1994, Mr. Yonker held various positions in project management
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and drug development at several biopharmaceutical companies. Mr. Yonker holds a B.S. degree in biomedical science and an
M.B.A. from Western Michigan University, and a project management professional certification from the Project Management
Institute.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge, through our Internet website, htzp.//www.corgentech.com, our Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and, if applicable, amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Item 2.
Properties As of December 31, 2004, we leased an approximately 57,700 square foot facility in South San Francisco, California
for our headquarters and as the base for marketing and product support operations and research and development activities. This
lease expires in June 2006 and we have an option to extend this lease for four more years. In addition, we leased an approximately
2,700 square foot facility in West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania for our sales and marketing operations. This lease expires in
June 2009. We also leased an approximately 3,000 square foot facility in South San Francisco, California. This lease expires in
March 31, 2005. We believe that our current facilities will be sufficient to meet our needs through 20035.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations. We are not currently
involved in any material legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2004.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "CGTK" since February 12, 2004, As
of March 1, 2005 there were approximately 164 stockholders of record of our common stock. The following table sets forth, for

the periods indicated, the high and low bid quotations for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market.

Common Stock

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2004
February 12 through March 31 ... $21.20 $17.21
SeCON QUATLET .....cooviviviiveteereree et r et s ee st er ettt oe $21.20 $14.25
Third QUATTET ...vieeereeeceee ettt er s et eae vt n s es e en s es et $17.89 $12.00
FOUrth QUAITET ..ottt st et e e an $20.17 $7.70

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain any future
earnings to finance the growth and development of our business and therefore do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will
depend upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, covenants in our debt instruments, and such other
factors as the board of directors deems relevant.

Equity Compensation Plans

The information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans required by this item
will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockhoiders, to be held on
June 7, 2005, under the caption "Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans," and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Registered Securities

Our initial public offering of common stock was effected through a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
110923) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 11, 2004 and a Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed pursuant to Rule 462 (File No. 333-112734) on February 12, 2004, pursuant to which we sold all
6,900,000 shares of our common stock registered. We expect to use the net proceeds of $100.8 million in our research and
development efforts, product development activities, and general corporate activities.

Our initial public offering of common stock commenced on February 12, 2004 and was completed after all of the shares
of common stock that were registered were sold. The managing underwriters in our initial public offering were Credit Suisse First
Boston LLC, Lehman Brothers Inc., CIBC World Markets Corp. and Piper Jaffray & Co. The aggregate offering price of the
6,900,000 shares registered and sold was $110.4 million. Of this amount, $7.7 million was paid in underwriting discounts and
commissions, and an additional $1.9 million of expenses was incurred, of which approximately $900,000 was incurred during the
year ended December 31, 2003 and approximately $1.0 million was incurred during the year ended December 31, 2004. None of
the expenses was paid, directly or indirectly, to directors, officers or persons owning 10 percent or more of our common stock, or
to our affiliates.
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We intend to use the net proceeds of the offering primarily for research and development of novel transcription factor
decoys, to initiate, enroll and complete our clinical trials for E2F Decoy.

As of December 31, 2004, we had applied the estimated aggregated net proceeds of $100.8 million from our initial
public offering as follows:

WOrKINE Capiali....c.cccniiiiiiiii s £73.1 million
T EIMPOTATY INVESUTIEILS: ...rveveveerererrerseteseersiveseesseetssrsasnscssesasrssssesesessssesssansasssessssssssssnsonessasesess $27.7 million

The foregoing amounts represent our best estimate of our use of proceeds for the period indicated. No such payments
were made to our directors or officers or their associates, holders of 10 percent or more of any class of our equity securities or to
our affiliates, other than payments to officers for salaries in the ordinary course of business.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we did not repurchase any equity securities.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with "ltem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and "ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”

included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Statements of Operations Data:

Contract revenue, related party .......cococeerccernennes 5— $— $— $8,678 $36,382
Operating expenses:

Research and development............cccccoovevrnnnnnnn. 1,333 8,068 21,536 46,004 62,997

General and administrative ...........ccocooevveennnns 781 2.374 3,206 6,067 15,013
Total operating EXpenses........c.cevecvveevececreerereenenene 2,114 10,442 24.742 52,071 78.010
L0SS from OPErations..........c.c.c.cveveereeeeiverernerivenas (2,114) (10,442) (24,742) (43,393) (41,628)
Interest and other income...........cceoveeivceriienrnnnne. 57 349 471 416 1,918
Interest and other eXpense.........c.ccveevereerriernrrenns — — (1,376) (20.190) (138)
NEL LOSS .ovveriericece et e (2,057) (10,093) (25.647) (63.167) (39.848)
Preferred stock deemed dividend...............c.c..... — — — (14.407) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders...... $(2,057) $(10,093) _$(25.647) $(77.574) $(39,848)
Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common

StOCKhOIETS. ..ot $(2.69) $(6.10) $(14.38) $(37.90) $(1.63)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net

loss attributable to common stockholders.......... 765,290 1.653.631 1,783,564 2,046.944 24.499.022
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Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments..... $4,626 $2,718 $28,586 $54,590 $115,178
Working capital........ccooevireernnencnnineenenneneenen, 4,183 1,931 24,424 47,016 108,417
TOtAl @SSELS v.voveviveieeicticieteetete et ren 5,014 4,102 31,238 69,323 131,548
Long-term debt.......ccoiniiiiii i — — — 627 192
Convertible preferred stock..........cccoveninrcniniecinee. 7.456 15,370 64,351 114,332 —
Accumulated defiCit ...oovvvicieeiecicen e, (3,050) (13,143) (38,790) (101,957) (141,805)
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) .....ccoovvvveneinnac (2,960) (12,863) (38,253) (78,818) 105,134

See Note 2 to our financial statements for a description of the method used to compute pro forma basic and diluted net
loss per common share and shares used in computing pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with "ltem 6. Selected Financial Data," and
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Overview

We are creating a pipeline of novel therapeutics based on our proprietary transcription factor decoy, or TF decoy,
technology. We evaluated our lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, a combination drug and delivery device, in two Phase 3
clinical trials during 2004 for the prevention of vein graft failure. The first of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT III, which
evaluated E2F Decoy in patients undergoing peripheral bypass graft surgeries (in the leg), did not meet its primary or secondary
endpoints. The second of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT 1V, is evaluating patients undergoing coronary artery bypass
graft, or CABG, surgeries. We and BMS are planning to meet by the end of March 2005 with the Food and Drug Administration,
or FDA, prior to unblinding the data from PREVENT IV. Whether we unblind and announce our PREVENT IV data prior to the
end of March, as was previously anticipated, will depend on the timing and results of our meeting with the FDA. We are also
developing E2F Decoy for the prevention of arterio-venous, or AV, graft failure and completed enrollment of a Phase 1/2 clinical
trial for this indication in late 2004. E2F Decoy has received Fast Track designation from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,
or FDA, for both the prevention of vein graft failure and AV graft failure. In October 2003, we entered into a worldwide
collaborative agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, or BMS, for the development and commercialization of E2F
Decoy for all indications. We have an additional TF Decoy in clinical development for the treatment of eczema and preclinical
development for the treatment of other inflammatory diseases and an additional TF decoy in pre-clinical development for the
treatment of cancer.

We are focused on the discovery, development and commercialization of a new class of therapeutics called transcription
factor decoys. Our TF decoys are synthetically manufactured short strands of DNA that specifically bind to and block the activity
of their target transcription factors. Transcription factors are specialized DNA-binding proteins and are widely recognized as
excellent therapeutic targets because they control gene expression and biological processes. Because abnormal gene expression is
a fundamental cause of many diseases, controlling the regulators, the transcription factors, offers an attractive therapeutic
approach. We believe that TF decoys may offer advantages over existing therapeutic approaches because a single TF decoy can
target multiple genes involved in a specific disease process. We are focused on TF decoys initially for the treatment of
cardiovascular disease, inflammatory disease, such as eczema, and cancer.

We were incorporated in January 1999. Since our inception, our only revenues have been derived from our recent
collaboration with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, or BMS, and we have incurred significant losses each year. We have funded
our operations since inception primarily through the private placement of equity securities. We generated net losses of
$25.6 million, $63.2 million and $39.8 million in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. We had an
accumulated deficit of $141.8 million as of December 31, 2004 and will need to generate significant revenues to achieve and then
maintain profitability.

In October 2003, we entered into global collaboration agreements with BMS for the development and
commercialization of E2F Decoy for all indications. We and BMS will co-promote E2F Decoy in the United States and share
equally in profits and losses. We have granted BMS the exclusive right to commercialize E2F Decoy outside the United States
pursuant to a royalty-bearing license. Under our agreements with BMS, BMS is obligated to fund a majority of the ongoing
development costs associated with E2F Decoy.
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In September 2004, we licensed a novel peptide delivery system from Cyclacel Limited, or Cyclacel, for potential use in
assisting in the systemic delivery of TF Decoys. The license grants us use of Cyclacel's proprietary Penetratin delivery technology
with TF Decoys. We paid Cyclacel an up-front payment and will pay Cyclacel milestone payments and royalties if licensed
products are commercialized.

In December 2004, we entered into an agreement with Avecia Limited for the manufacture of: (a) E2F single strand
intermediates, (b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (c¢) HIF-Decoy single strand
intermediates. We paid Avecia an up-front payment of $1.6 million and will pay Avecia up to an additional of $3.1 million plus
reimbursement for raw materials upon the achievement of certain manufacturing and product delivery milestones.

On March 11, 2005 we and Avecia Limited amended our December 27, 2004 agreement for the manufacture of: (a) E2F
single strand intermediates, (b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (c¢) HIF-Decoy
single strand intermediates. The amendment extended by one month the period during which Avecia would manufacture certain
materials for an additional payment by us of $1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw materials. The agreement was previously
amended on March 4, 2005 to specify the amount of reimbursement to be paid by us for previously used raw materials. The
agreement does not provide for the production of material for commercial sale.

Financial Operations Overview

Revenues

We have not generated any revenues from sales of commercial products since our inception and do not expect to
generate any revenue, other than contract revenues and milestone payments, until at least the end of 2005. BMS will have the
right to record all United States product sales.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses represent costs incurred for the discovery of novel TF decoys, our preclinical and
clinical trials, activities relating to regulatory filings and manufacturing development efforts. We utilize a combination of internal
resources and independent contractors to manage our clinical trials. The manufacturing activities related to product for clinical

trials are conducted by third parties. We expense our research and development costs as they are incurred.

The following table shows the allocation of research and development expenses to E2F Decoy and all other activities.

Year Ended December 31
2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)
E2F DIECOY oottt sttt st $17,182 $41,218 $48,175
NE-KB DECOY ...ooieeeiiiireiereirinterteiieteisieb ettt seae e nseb s v 1,083 482 6,463
Other ACIVILIES ....v.veveerereerreierireceircereiereie e ere st b eaes 3.271 4.304 8.359
Total research and development €Xpenses ........cooovereveveeereirrenne. $21,536 $46.004 $62.997

During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 and 2004, we incurred research and development expenses
totaling $130.5 million. Of this amount, approximately $106.6 million was spent on activities required to advance the
development of our clinical product candidate, E2F Decoy, through full enrollment of Phase 3 clinical trials. The remaining
amount of $23.9 million was expended primarily on employee costs, supplies and materials and infrastructure related to chemistry
and related functions associated with our early stage research activities.
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During the year ended December 31, 2004, we incurred research and development expenses for E2F Decoy of
approximately $48.2 million. In October 2003, we entered into our collaboration agreement with BMS, under which BMS is
obligated to fund a majority of the ongoing costs of developing E2F Decoy for graft failure. During the year ended December 31,
2004, we recorded approximately $28.7 million in reimbursable expenses due from BMS, as contract revenue, related party. We
currently have two clinical product candidates, E2F Decoy and NF-kB Decoy. We and BMS are planning to meet by the end of
March 2005 with the FDA prior to unblinding the data from PREVENT IV. Whether we unblind and announce the PREVENT
IV data prior to the end of March, as was previously anticipated, will depend on the timing and results of our meeting with the
FDA. Until we meet with the FDA and unblind the data, we cannot forecast the results of the Prevent [V trial nor accurately
estimate the expenses to complete the development of E2F Decoy.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and other related costs for personnel in executive,
finance, accounting, facilities, other general corporate activities and non-cash stock compensation.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Our management's discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well
as the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and
judgments. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 to our financial statements included
elsewhere in this prospectus, we believe that the following accounting policies relating to revenue recognition, stock
compensation and clinical trial accounting are most critical to a full understanding and evaluation of our reported financial results.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues associated with our collaboration with BMS consist of non-refundable, up-front license fees and
reimbursement of development expenses.

We use revenue recognition criteria outlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements" and "Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition" and Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF Issue 00-
21 "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables," or EITF 00-21. Accordingly, we recognize revenues from licensing
agreements based on the performance requirements of the agreement. Non-refundable up-front fees, where we have an ongoing
involvement or performance obligation, are generally recorded as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and amortized into license
fees in the statements of operations over the estimated term of the performance obligation.

To date we have received $25.0 million from BMS in non-refundable up-front fees in consideration for license and
distribution rights of E2F Decoy. In determining the term of performance obligation, we took into account the estimated period to
complete clinical trials and receive regulatory approvals for commercialization of E2F Decoy in CABG and AV grafts based
upon the most recent development
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plans for each product. If such plans are modified, the timing of recognition of deferred revenue will change. In addition, the
manufacturing and co-promotion arrangements were not considered to be deliverables as defined under EITF 00-21.

Stock Compensation

We account for employee stock options using the intrinsic-value method in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB,
Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB No. 25, and
related interpretations and have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS,
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, or SFAS No. 123.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. We have elected to continue to follow the intrinsic
value method of accounting as prescribed by APB No. 25. The information regarding net loss as required by SFAS No. 123,
presented in Note 1 to our financial statements, has been determined as if we had accounted for our employee stock options under
the fair value method of that statement. The resulting effect on net loss pursuant to SFAS No. 123 is not likely to be representative
of the effects on net loss pursuant to SFAS No. 123 in future years, since future years are likely to include additional grants and
the irregular impact of future years' vesting.

Stock compensation expense, which is a non-cash charge, results from stock option grants at exercise prices below the
deemed fair value of the underlying common stock. Stock compensation is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of the underlying option, generally four years. From inception through December 31, 2004, we recorded deferred stock
compensation expense of $23.7 million which is amortized over the vesting period of the options. At December 31, 2004, we had
a total of $17.0 million remaining to be amortized. The total unamortized deferred stock compensation is expected to be
amortized as follows: $7.7 million during the year ending December 31, 2005, $5.1 million during the year ending December 31,
2006, $4.2 million during the year ending December 31, 2007 and $33,500 during the year ending December 31, 2008.

Clinical Trial Accounting

We record accruals for estimated clinical study costs, comprising payments for work performed by contract research
organizations and participating hospitals. These costs are a significant component of research and development expenses. We
accrue costs for clinical studies performed by contract research organizations based on estimates of work performed under the
contracts. Costs of setting up hospital sites for participation in trials are accrued immediately. Hospital costs related to patient
enrollment are accrued as patients are entered in the trial. Payments to hospitals for post-surgery patient angiograms are accrued
at the time of the performance of the angiogram.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Contract Revenue, Related Party. Contract revenue, related party was $8.7 million for the three months and for the year
ended December 31, 2003 and $36.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The higher revenue in 2004 was primarily

attributable to reimbursement by BMS of $21.7 million in expenses associated with E2F Decoy research and development and
revenue recognition of $5.9 million of deferred revenue.
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Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased from $46.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 to $63.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in research and development
expenses of $17.0 million was primarily the result of an increase of $7.6 million in payroll and non-cash compensation expenses,
$4.3 million in expenses associated with manufacturing development activities, and $3.4 million in expenses associated with the
research development of new drug candidates.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased from $6.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 to $15.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase of $8.9 million was primarily
attributable to an increase of $4.0 million in payroil and non-cash stock compensation expenses, $3.6 million in expenses
associated with developing the infrastructure necessary to support the potential commercialization of E2F Decoy, and
$1.3 million in costs associated with becoming a publicly-traded company in 2004,

Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income increased from $416,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003
to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as a result of higher average cash, cash equivalent and short-term
investment balances from proceeds from our initial public offering.

Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense decreased from $20.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 to $138,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased due
to the decrease in non-cash interest expense from the bridge loan in 2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Contract Revenue, Related Party. Contract revenue, related party was $0 for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
$8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to the reimbursement by
BMS of $6.9 million in expenses associated with E2F Decoy research and development and the recognition of $1.7 million of
deferred revenue.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased from $21.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 to $46.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in research and development of
$24.5 million was primarily the result of an increase of $10.3 million in expenses associated with the expansion of our clinical
development programs relating to E2F Decoy, $10.0 million in expenses associated with manufacturing development activities,
and higher payroll and non-cash stock compensation expenses of $2.8 million as we increased our personnel.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased from $3.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 to $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase of $2.9 million was primarily
attributable to higher payroll and non-cash stock compensation expenses and related expenses of $2.2 million as we increased our
personnel and $617,000 related to increased legal and patent expenses.
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Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income decreased from $471,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002
to $416,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003 as a result of lower average cash balances.

Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense increased from $1.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 to $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 included a
charge of $5.5 million related to the estimated fair value of warrants issued in conjunction with convertible notes issued in
September and October 2003 and an associated beneficial conversion feature on these notes of $14.5 million.

Income Taxes

At December 31, 2004, we had net operating loss and research carryforwards for federal income taxes of $93.7 million
and $6.0 million, respectively. If not utilized, federal net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2007. Our utilization
of the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code, and similar state provisions, as a result of changes in our ownership structure. The annual limitations may result in
the expiration of net operating losses and credits prior to utilization.

At December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, we had deferred tax assets representing the benefit of net operating loss
carryforwards and certain start-up costs capitalized for tax purposes. We did not record a benefit for the deferred tax assets
because realization of the benefit was uncertain and, accordingly, a valuation allowance is provided to offset the deferred tax
assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

Since our inception, we have financed our operations primarily through the issuance of equity securities, capital
equipment financing and payments from BMS pursuant to our recent collaboration. At December 31, 2004, we had
$115.2 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and had $668,000 of restricted cash pledged as collateral for
letters of credit for our leased facilities. In February 2004, we issued 6,900,000 shares of common stock at $16.00 per share upon
the closing of our initial public offering in which we raised approximately $100.8 million, net of underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated expenses.

Pursuant to our collaboration agreement, BMS has agreed to fund a majority of ongoing development costs incurred
towards the development of E2F Decoy for the prevention of bypass graft failure and prevention of AV graft failure. We believe
that our available cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and expected reimbursements of development costs from
BMS will be sufficient to fund anticipated levels of operations through at least mid-2006.

Cash Flows

Net cash used in operating activities was $39.0 million for 2004. This consisted primarily of a net loss for the period of
$39.8 million plus decrease in deferred revenue, accrued clinical trial liabilities, and increase in prepaid expenses and contract
revenue receivable of $11.4 million, partially offset by an non-cash compensation expense, depreciation and amortization
expenses, decrease in other long-term assets, increase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities of $12.0 million. Cash
used in investing activities of $100.4 million in 2004, consisted primarily of net purchase of marketable securities of
$98.3 million plus the purchases of property and equipment of $2.1 million. Net cash provided by financing activities of
$102.2 million during 2004 was due primarily to receipt of net proceeds of $100.8 million from the sale of common stock in our
initial public offering in February 2004 and proceeds of $3.1 million from the exercise of warrants, stock options and the
purchase of shares
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through our Employee Stock Purchase Plan. These proceeds were offset by repayments of debt of $421,000 and the decrease of
bank overdraft of $1.3 million.

Net cash used in operating activities increased from $20.0 million in 2002 to $25.8 million in 2003 and $39.0 million in
2004. The increase in cash used in operating activities from 2002 to 2003 and from 2003 to 2004 was due to continued expansion
of research and development activities and clinical trial costs.

Net cash provided by/used in investing activities changed from cash used of $14.8 million for 2002 to cash provided of
$14.8 million in 2003 to cash used of $100.4 million. The increase in net cash provided by investing activities from 2002 to 2003
is primarily due to sales of short-term investments of $16.9 million. The decrease in net cash provided by investing activities from
2003 to 2004 is primarily due to net purchases of short-term investments of $114.2 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased from $47.5 million in 2002 to $52.4 million in 2003 and
$102.2 million in 2004. The increase in cash provided by financing activities from 2002 to 2003 was primarily due to incremental
proceeds of $15.5 million from the issuance of bridge loans, issuances of preferred stock and issuances of equipment loans. The
increase in cash provided by financing activities from 2003 to 2004 was primarily due to proceeds of $100.8 million from our
initial public offering, and proceeds of $3.1 million from the exercise of warrants, stock options and the purchase of shares
through our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Credit Facility

In February 2003, we entered into an equipment line of credit with GE Capital Corporation providing funding of up to
$1.5 million. At December 31, 2004, we had drawn down $1.4 million on the line of credit. Amounts under the line of credit are
secured by the equipment purchased.

Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We expect to devote substantial resources to continue our research and development efforts and to expand our sales,
marketing and manufacturing programs associated with the commercialization and launch of E2F Decoy and our future products.

We do not expect to generate significant additional funds, other than reimbursements and milestone payments that we
receive from our collaboration with BMS, until we successfully obtain marketing approval for and begin selling E2F Decoy. We
believe that the key factors that will affect our internal and external sources of cash are:

e our ability to successfully obtain marketing approval for and to commercially launch E2F Decoy;
e the success of our other clinical and preclinical development programs;
o the receptivity of the capital markets to financings by biotechnology companies; and

e our ability to maintain our collaboration with BMS and enter into other strategic collaborations with biotechnology
and pharmaceutical companies and the success of such collaborations.

[f our available cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, net proceeds from our initial public offering,
expected reimbursements of development costs and the first regulatory milestone payment from BMS (payable upon our first U.S.
New Drug Application filing for E2F Decoy) are insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements or if we develop or acquire
additional product candidates, we may need to raise additional external funds through the sale of additional equity or debt
securities. The sale of additional equity and debt securities may result in additional dilution to our stockholders. Additional
financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we are unable to obtain this additional
financing, we may be required to reduce the scope of,
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delay or eliminate some or all of our planned research, development and commercialization activities, which could harm our
business.

Contractual Obligations
Our outstanding contractual obligations relate to our equipment debt financings, facilities leases, and obligations under
our agreement with our third-party contract manufacturer. Qur contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004 were as follows

(in millions):

Payments Due by Period
One to Four to

Less than Three Five  After Five
Contractual Obligations Total One Year Years Years Years
Equipment financing..........cccovoceevnvieoiennencsnsnnnnens $0.7 $0.5 $0.2 $— —
Operating 18ases........covcvvrunirerrerereeiareern e 35 2.1 1.4 — —
Manufacturing development agreement.................... 3.1 3.1 — — —
Total contractual cash obligations..........c.coceverennnnn, $7.3 $5.7 $1.6 $— $—

The contractual summary above reflects only payment obligations that are fixed and determinable. We also have
contractual payment obligations, the timing of which is contingent on future events. We are obligated to make certain payments
under our license agreements with The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University and The Brigham and
Women's Hospital, Inc. if milestones relating to the development and regulatory approval of E2F Decoy are achieved. In addition,
if E2F Decoy is successfully commercialized we will pay royalties and pursuant to these license agreements. We are obligated to
make annual license, milestone and royalty fee payments under our license agreement with Cyclacel for the licensed Penetratin®
Endonuclear Delivery System. We are obligated to make certain payments under our agreement with Avecia Limited upon the
achievement of certain manufacturing and product delivery milestones. Upon completion of the manufacturing program, but in no
event later than March 31, 2005, we will notify Avecia Limited of our intention to continue future manufacturing of the products
at Avecia Limited's facility in Grangemouth, Scotland. The agreement shall continue until the completion of the manufacturing
program and may be terminated by either party at any time prior to completion of the program with 30 days notice. Please see
"Business—License Agreements” and "Business—Manufacturing” for a further description of these agreements.

On March 11, 2005 we and Avecia Limited amended our December 27, 2004 agreement for the manufacture of: (a) E2F
single strand intermediates, (b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (¢) HIF-Decoy
single strand intermediates. The amendment extended by one month the period during which Avecia would manufacture certain
materials for an additional payment by us of $1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw materials. The agreement was previously
amended on March 4, 2005 to specify the amount of reimbursement to be paid by us for previously used raw materials. The
agreement does not provide for the production of material for commercial sale.

We have also entered into letters of credit totaling $638,000 securing our operating lease obligations.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2003 and 2004, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with
unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purposes

entities, which are typically established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004),
"Share-Based Payment", or FAS 123R, which replaces SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, or
SFAS 123, and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements
based on their fair values, beginning with the first interim or annual period after June 15, 2005, with early adoption encouraged.
The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS 123, no longer will be an alternative to financial statement
recognition. We are required to adopt SFAS 123R in our third quarter of fiscal 2003, beginning July 1, 2005. Under SFAS 123R,
we must determine the appropriate fair value model to be used for valuing share-based payments, the amortization method for
compensation cost and the transition method to be used at date of adoption. The transition methods include prospective and
retroactive adoption options. Under the retroactive options, prior periods may be restated either as of the beginning of the year of
adoption or for all periods presented. The prospective method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested
stock options and restricted stock at the beginning of the first quarter of adoption of SFAS 123R, while the retroactive methods
would record compensation expense for all unvested stock options and restricted stock beginning with the first period restated.
We are evaluating the requirements of SFAS 123R and we expect that the adoption of SFAS 123R will have a material impact on
our consolidated results of operations and earings per share. We have not yet determined the method of adoption or the effect of
adopting SFAS 123R, and we have not determined whether the adoption will result in amounts that are similar to the current pro
forma disclosures under SFAS 123.

In March 2004, the FASB approved the consensus reached on the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 03-1,
"The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments." The Issue's objective is to
provide guidance for identifying other-than-temporarily impaired investments. EITF 03-1 also provides new disclosure
requirements for investments that are deemed to be temporarily impaired. In September 2004, the FASB issued a FASB Staff
Position (FSP) EITF 03-1-1 that delays the effective date of the measurement and recognition guidance in EITF 03-1 until further
notice. The disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 are effective with this annual report for fiscal 2004. Once the FASB reaches a
final decision on the measurement and recognition provisions, we will evaluate the impact of the adoption of the accounting
provisions of EITF 03-1.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk is principally limited to our cash equivalents and investments that have maturities of less
than two years. We maintain an investment portfolio of investment grade, liquid debt securities that limits the amount of credit
exposure to any one issue, issuer or type of instrument. The securities in our investment portfolio are not leveraged, are classified
as available-for-sale and are therefore subject to interest rate risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate exposure. If market
interest rates were to increase by 100 basis points, or 1 percent from December 31, 2004 levels, the fair value of our portfolio
would decline by approximately $405,000. The modeling technique used measures the change in fair values arising from an
immediate hypothetical shift in market interest rates and assumes ending fair values include principal plus accrued interest.
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BUSINESS RISKS
Risks Related to Our Business

We will depend heavily on the success of our lead product candidate, E2ZF Decoy, which is still in development. If we are
unable to commercialize E2F Decoy or experience significant delays in doing so, we may have to cease operations.

We have invested a significant portion of our time and financial resources since our inception in the development of E2F
Decoy. We anticipate that in the near term our ability to generate revenues will depend solely on the successful development,
approval and commercialization of E2F Decoy. If we are not successful in the completion of clinical trials for the development,
approval and commercialization of E2F Decoy, we may never generate any revenues and may be forced to cease operations. All
of our other product candidates are in preclinical development, and we do not expect to seek regulatory approval of these
products for many years, if at all.

The commercial success of E2F Decoy will depend upon successful completion of clinical trials, manufacturing
commercial supplies, obtaining marketing approval, successfully launching the product and acceptance of the product by the
medical community and third party payors as clinically useful, cost-effective and safe. The primary and secondary endpoints of
our Phase 3 clinical trial in PBG failed to show a benefit in the edifoligide treated group compared to the placebo group. If the
data from our Phase 3 clinical trail in CABG is not satisfactory, we may not proceed with our planned filing of an application for
approval.

Our E2F Decoy consists of a drug and a delivery device, both of which must be approved to commercialize E2F Decoy.
Even if we file an application for approval with satisfactory clinical data, the FDA may not accept our filing, or may request
additional information, including data from additional clinical trials. The FDA may also approve the device but not the drug or
vice versa, may approve E2F Decoy for very limited purposes with many restrictions on its use, may delay approval, or
ultimately, may not grant marketing approval for E2F Decoy. Even if we do receive the approval of the FDA, we may be unable
to gain market acceptance by the medical community and third-party payors.

If BMS terminates our collaboration, or if there are any adverse developments in our relationship with BMS, we could be
prevented from successfully commercializing E2F Decoy.

In October 2003, we entered into agreements with BMS relating to the development, regulatory approval and
commercialization of E2F Decoy. Based on the terms of our collaboration, we expect to receive significant development funding
and milestone payments from BMS. BMS may terminate the collaborative agreement upon six months prior notice, after which
BMS will not be obligated to fund our development and commercialization costs or make milestone payments. The collaboration
is governed by a joint steering committee, consisting of an equal number of representatives of us and BMS. There are also
working groups with representation from both parties that have responsibility over development and regulatory, manufacturing,
finance and commercialization matters. Ultimate decision-making authority is vested in us as to some matters and in BMS as to
other matters. A third category of decisions requires the approval of both us and BMS. Outside the United States, ultimate
decision-making authority as to most matters is vested in BMS. Any loss of BMS as a commercial partner for E2F Decoy, dispute
over the terms of the collaboration, disagreements over decisions made with respect to the collaboration or other adverse
developments in our relationship with BMS would harm our business and would require us to seek additional capital.
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We have limited manufacturing capabilities and manufacturing personnel and expect to depend on third parties to
manufucture E2F Decoy and any future products. We are dependent on single suppliers for E2F Decoy intermediates and
components of the pressure device used to administer E2F Decoy.

We have limited personnel with experience in, and we do not own facilities for, manufacturing any clinical or
commercial products. We rely on third parties to supply us with E2F Decoy and its related device for our clinical trials. In
December 2004, we entered into an agreement with Avecia Limited for the manufacture of: (a) E2F single strand intermediates,
(b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (c) HIF-Decoy single strand intermediates. On
March 11, 2005 we and Avecia Limited amended our December 2004 agreement for the manufacture of: (a) E2F single strand
intermediates, (b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (c) HIF-Decoy single strand
intermediates. The amendment extended by one month the period during which Avecia would manufacture certain materials for
an additional payment by us of $1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw materials. The agreement was previously amended on
March 4, 2005 to specify the amount of reimbursement to be paid by us for previously used raw materials. The agreement does
not provide for the production of material for commercial sale. We do not have agreements with these third parties which obligate
them to provide us with any products for future commercial sales. There are a limited number of manufactures that are capable of
manufacturing the active ingredient of E2F Decoy or its related device and are willing to do so. If we are unable, for whatever
reason, to obtain E2F Decoy and its related device from these suppliers, we may not be able to obtain alternate manufacturers ina -
timely manner, if at all, to meet our requirements for clinical trials and, subject to receipt of regulatory approvals, commercial
sale. We also depend on third-party contract laboratories to perform quality control testing of E2F Decoy and its device.

In order to produce E2F Decoy in the quantities that we anticipate will be required to meet anticipated market demand,
we need to increase, or scale up, the production process by a significant factor over the current level of production of the active
pharmaceutical ingredient. If we are unable to do so, we may not be able to produce E2F Decoy in sufficient quantities to meet
the requirements for the launch of the product or to meet future demand. In addition, if the scaled up production process is not
efficient, our gross margins may be reduced.

We may in the future elect to manufacture certain of our products in our own manufacturing facilities. We would need to
invest additional funds and recruit qualified personnel in order to build or lease and operate any manufacturing facilities.

If our third-party manufacturers' facilities do not follow current good manufacturing practices, our product development and
commercialization efforts may be harmed.

There are a limited number of manufacturers that operate under the FDA's and European Union's good manufacturing
practices regulations and are capable of manufacturing E2F Decoy. Our third-party manufacturers may encounter difficulties in
achieving quality control and quality assurance and may experience shortages of qualified personnel. A failure of our third-party
manufacturers to follow current good manufacturing practices or other regulatory requirements and to document their adherence
to such practices may lead to significant delays in the availability of products for commercial use or clinical study, the termination
of, or hold on a clinical study, or may delay or prevent filing or approval of marketing applications for our products. In addition
we could be subject to sanctions being imposed on us, including fines, injunctions and civil penalties. Changing manufacturers
may require revalidation of the manufacturing process and procedures in accordance with FDA mandated current good
manufacturing practices and will require FDA approval. This revalidation may be costly and time consuming. If we are unable to
arrange for third-party manufacturing of our products, or to do so on commercially reasonable terms, we may not be able to
complete development of our products, including E2F Decoy, or market them.
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Our competitors currently offer and may develop therapies that reduce the size of our markets.

There are a growing number of approved therapies for the prevention or treatment of cardiovascular disease and end
stage renal disease, or ESRD. These include cholesterol lowering agents, agents to prevent or disrupt blood clots, drug eluting
stents, balloon angioplasty, arterial bypass grafts and synthetic conduits used for bypass and use of AV fistulae to provide
vascular access for ESRD patients. Some or all of these treatments could reduce the size of the CABG and AV graft markets.
These treatments are marketed by major pharmaceutical and/or medical device companies. In particular, drug eluting stents were
only approved for use in 2003 and could potentially result in a significant decrease in bypass graft procedure volumes. Two drug
eluting stents have been approved in the United States and are being marketed by Johnson & Johnson and Boston Scientific
Corporation, two companies with significant financial and marketing resources. In February 2004, Guidant Corporation and
Johnson & Johnson announced a co-promotion agreement pursuant to which Guidant will co-promote Johnson & Johnson's
CYPHER drug eluting stent. In addition, various other treatments for cardiovascular disease are in various stages of preclinical or
clinical testing by other companies. These therapies could also affect the size of the CABG and/or AV graft markets or could
result in pricing pressure if we receive marketing approval for E2F Decoy.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbursement for our products By third-party payors, there may be no commercially
viable markets for our products or the markets may be much smaller than expected.

The availability and levels of reimbursement by governmental and other third party payors affect the market for our
products. The efficacy, safety and cost-effectiveness of our products as well as the efficacy, safety and cost-effectiveness of any
competing products will determine the availability and level of reimbursement. These third-party payors continually attempt to
contain or reduce the costs of healthcare by challenging the prices charged for healthcare products and services. In certain
countries, particularly the countries of the European Union, the pricing of prescription pharmaceuticals is subject to governmental
control. In these countries, pricing negotiations with governmental authorities can take six to twelve months or longer after the
receipt of regulatory marketing approval for a product. To obtain reimbursement or pricing approval in some countries, we may
be required to conduct a clinical trial that compares the cost-effectiveness of our products, including E2F Decoy, to other
available therapies. If reimbursement for our products is unavailable or limited in scope or amount or if pricing is set at
unsatisfactory levels, our revenues would be reduced.

Because E2F Decoy treatment occurs during bypass graft surgery, and many of these patients are over 65 years of age
and likely to be covered by Medicare, we will seek to have the level of reimbursement for bypass surgery incorporating E2F
Decoy treatment increased by the Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services, or CMS. CMS is the federal agency that
administers Medicare and makes coverage and reimbursement decisions for Medicare beneficiaries. This is a time consuming and
expensive process. In addition, many private insurers adopt CMS' coverage and reimbursement decisions for their insureds. 1f
CMS does not increase the level of reimbursement to hospitals associated with E2F Decoy treatment on a timely basis, or at all, or
establishes an unsatisfactory level of reimbursement, E2F Decoy may never obtain market acceptance or generate meaningful
revenues.

The Fast Track designation for development of E2F Decoy may not actually lead to a faster development or regulatory review
or approval process.

1f a drug is intended for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition and the drug demonstrates the potential to
address unmet medical needs for this condition, the drug sponsor may apply for FDA Fast Track designation. Marketing
applications filed by sponsors of products in fast track development may qualify for expedited review under policies or
procedures offered by the FDA, but the Fast Track designation does not assure such qualification. We have been granted Fast
Track designation from the FDA for E2F Decoy for the prevention of bypass graft failure and AV graft
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failure. E2F Decoy's Fast Track designation may be withdrawn by the FDA if the FDA believes that it is no longer supported by
data from our clinical development program. In addition, E2F Decoy's Fast Track designation does not guarantee that we will be
able to take advantage of the expedited review procedures and does not increase the likelihood that the FDA will ultimately
approve E2F Decoy.

If our preclinical tests or clinical trials with respect to our TF decoys for bypass graft failure, AV graft failure, inflammatory
diseases or cancer do not meet safety or efficacy endpoints in these evaluations, or if we experience significant delays in these
tests or trials, our ability to commercialize products and our financial position will be impaired.

Clinical development, including preclinical testing, is a long, expensive and uncertain process and is subject to delays. It
may take us several years to complete our testing, and failure can occur at any stage of testing. Patient enrollment in future clinical
trials and completion of patient follow-up in our current Phase 3 clinical trial depends on many factors, including the size of the
patient population, the nature of the trial protocol, the proximity of patients to clinical sites and the eligibility criteria for the study
and patient compliance. Delays in patient enrollment or failure of patients to continue to participate in a study may cause an
increase in costs and delays, or result in the failure of the trial.

The results of preclinical or clinical studies do not necessarily predict future clinical trial results, and acceptable results
in early studies might not be seen in later studies. Any preclinical or clinical test may fail to produce results satisfactory to the
FDA or foreign regulatory authorities. Preclinical and clinical data can be interpreted in different ways, which could delay, limit
or prevent regulatory approval. Drug-related adverse events during a clinical trial could cause us to repeat a trial, terminate a trial
or cancel the program. In addition, we are required by the FDA to conduct additional preclinical studies, including toxicology,
while our clinical studies are ongoing.

We have a limited operating history and if we do not generate significant revenues, we will not be able to achieve profitability.

We do not have any products approved for marketing. We have a limited history of operations and have focused
primarily on clinical trials of E2F Decoy. We have incurred net losses since our inception. As of December 31, 2004, we had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $141.8 million. We expect to incur substantial net losses to further develop and
commercialize E2F Decoy and do not know whether or when we will become profitable. If we are unable to generate significant
revenues from E2F Decoy or attain profitability, we will not be able to sustain our operations.

We will need additional financing, which may be difficult to obtain. If we fail to obtain necessary financing or do so on
unattractive terms, our development programs and other operations could be harmed.

We will require substantial funds to conduct development, including preclinical testing and clinical trials of our potential
products including E2F Decoy. We expect that our existing cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments will be sufficient to
fund our planned operations through at least mid-2006. BMS will fund a majority of the ongoing development costs we incur for
the development of E2F Decoy for CABG and AV graft failure. We expect to increase our spending significantly as we expand
our infrastructure, development programs and commercialization activities and our future capital requirements will depend on
many factors, including:

e the success of our collaboration with BMS;

« the scope and results of our E2F Decoy clinical trials;

o the timing of, and the costs involved in, obtaining regulatory approvals for E2F Decoy;

o the cost of E2F Decoy manufacturing activities;
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e the cost of E2F Decoy commercialization activities, including marketing, sales and distribution;
e the advancement of our NF-k B Decoy and cancer decoys into development; and

» the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other patent-related
costs, including litigation costs and the results of such litigation.

Additional financing may not be available when we need it or may not be available on favorable terms. If we are unable
to obtain adequate funding on a timely basis, we may be required to significantly curtail one or more of our research, development
or commercial programs. We could be required to seek funds through arrangements with collaborators or others that may require
us to relinquish rights to some of our technologies, product candidates or products which we would otherwise pursue on our own.
If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our then-existing stockholders will experience dilution and the terms of
any new equity securities may have preference over our common stock.

Our products are based on a new technology, TF decoys, and we have only limited experience in regulatory affairs, which
may affect our ability or the time required to obtain necessary regulatory approvals.

All of our product candidates, including E2F Decoy, are based on our TF decoy technology. Because there are currently
no approved products based on this technology, the regulatory requirements governing this type of product may be more rigorous
or less clearly established than for already approved classes of therapeutics. We must provide the FDA and foreign regulatory
authorities with preclinical and clinical data that demonstrate that our products are safe and effective before they can be approved
for commercial sale. We, not BMS, have primary responsibility for compiling this data and submitting the application for
regulatory approval of E2F Decoy in the United States. We have only limited experience in filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals. As a result, we may experience a longer regulatory process in connection with obtaining
regulatory approvals for our product candidates.

If our post-approval follow up trial of CABG patients does not show a difference in major cardiac events between treated and
untreated patients the FDA could withdraw or limit the approval of E2F Decoy.

If E2F Decoy is approved by the FDA, we will be required by the FDA to monitor the CABG patients for up to five
years after enrollment to track major cardiac events such as death, heart attack, the need for a repeat CABG surgery or the need
for surgical intervention to rescue a failed or failing graft. Even if E2F Decoy is approved for the prevention of bypass graft
failure, the FDA may subsequently withdraw or limit such approval if we cannot show a difference in major cardiac events
between CABG patients treated with E2F Decoy and CABG patients receiving a placebo.

If third-party clinical research organizations do not perform in an acceptable and timely manner, our clinical trials could be
delayed or unsuccessful,

‘We do not have the ability to conduct all of our clinical trials independently. We rely on clinical investigators,
third-party clinical research organizations and consultants to perform substantially all of these functions. If we cannot locate
acceptable contractors to run our clinical trials or enter into favorable agreements with them, or if these third parties do not
successfully carry out their contractual duties, satisfy FDA requirements for the conduct of clinical trials or meet expected
deadlines, we will be unable to obtain required approvals and will be unable to commercialize our products, including E2F
Decoy, on a timely basis, if at all. Our agreements are generally cancelable by either party with 30 to 90 days agreement, with or
without cause.
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We may fail to obtain FDA clearance or approval of the pressure device used to deliver E2F Decoy.

We will need to obtain clearance of the pressure device used to deliver the drug by the FDA's Center for Devices and
Radiological Health, or CDRH, under a 510(k) pre-market notification establishing that the pressure device is substantially
equivalent to one or more marketed predicate devices. We expect to file such notification in the first quarter of 2005. In the event
we cannot establish such substantial equivalence, we will need to request that the FDA classify the pressure device as a Class [ or
Class II device that can be marketed without pre-market approval or, failing that, obtain pre-market approval of the pressure
device by CDRH. The FDA classifies medical devices into three classes based on the regulatory control deemed necessary by the
FDA to reasonably ensure safety and effectiveness. A Class I device is subject to general controls, including compliance with the
FDA's good manufacturing practices regulations and labeling regulations. A Class II device is subject to general controls and
special controls, which may include special labeling requirements, mandatory performance standards and post-market
surveillance. A Class 11 device is subject to pre-market approval requiring the independent demonstration that the new medical
device is safe and effective. If we are unable to obtain clearance or approval of the pressure device, the commercialization of E2F
Decoy could be delayed or possibly prevented.

Even if our products are approved by regulatory authorities, if we fail to comply with ongeing regulatory requirements, or if
we experience unanticipated problems with our products, these products could be subject to restrictions or withdrawal from
the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approval, along with the manufacturing processes, post-approval clinical
data and promotional activities for such product, will be subject to continual review and periodic inspections by the FDA and
other regulatory bodies. Even if regulatory approval of a product is granted, the approval may be subject to limitations on the
indicated uses for which the product may be marketed or contain requirements for costly post-marketing testing and surveillance
to monitor the safety or efficacy of the product. Later discovery of previously unknown problems with our products, including
unanticipated adverse events or adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, manufacturer or manufacturing processes,
or failure to comply with regulatory requirements, may result in restrictions on such products or manufacturing processes,
withdrawal of the products from the market, voluntary or mandatory recall, fines, suspension of regulatory approvals, product
seizures, injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jurisdictions will prevent us from marketing our products abroad.

We intend to market our products in international markets. In order to market our products in the European Union and
many other foreign jurisdictions, we must obtain separate regulatory approvals. In the case of E2F Decoy, we have had limited
interactions with foreign regulatory authorities, and BMS has responsibility to obtain regulatory approvals outside the United
States. We will be dependent on BMS to obtain these approvals. The approval procedure varies among countries and can involve
additional testing, and the time required to obtain approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. The foreign
regulatory approval process may include all of the risks associated with obtaining FDA approval. We may not obtain foreign
regulatory approvals on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in other
countries, and approval by one foreign regulatory authority does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in other foreign
countries or by the FDA. We may not be able to file for regulatory approvals and may not receive necessary approvals to
commercialize our products in any market.
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If we do not find collaborators for our other product candidates, we may have to reduce or delay our rate of product
development and/or increase our expenditures.

Our strategy to develop, manufacture and commercialize our products includes entering into various relationships with
pharmaceutical companies with respect to some programs to advance such programs and reduce our expenditures on such
programs. To date, we have entered into one collaboration agreement regarding E2F Decoy. Our other product candidates will
target highly competitive therapeutic markets in which we have limited experience and expertise. 1f we are unable to develop this
expertise ourselves, we will need to enter into agreements with a larger biotechnology or pharmaceutical company to provide us
with the necessary resources and experience for the development and commercialization of products in these markets. There are a
limited number of companies with the resources necessary to develop our future products commercially, and we may be unable to
attract any of these firms. A company that has entered into a collaboration agreement with one of our competitors may choose not
to enter into a collaboration agreement with us. We may not be able to negotiate any cellaboration on acceptable terms or at all. If
we are not able to establish collaborative arrangements, we may have to reduce or delay further development of some of our
programs and /or increase our expenditures and undertake the development activities at our own expense. If we elect to increase
our expenditures to fund our development programs, we will need to obtain additional capital, which may not be available on
acceptable terms or at all.

In addition, there have been a significant number of recent business combinations among large biotechnology and
pharmaceutical companies that have reduced the number of potential future collaborators. If business combinations involving
BMS or other potential collaborators were to occur, the effect could be to diminish, terminate or cause delays in one or more of
our product development programs.

We depend on our officers and key employees, and if we are not able to retain them or recruit additional qualified personnel,
our business will suffer.

We are highly dependent on our president and chief executive officer, John P. McLaughlin and other officers and key
employees. Due to the specialized knowledge each of our officers and key employees possesses with respect to E2F Decoy and
our operations, the loss of service of any of our officers or key employees could delay or prevent the successful completion of cur
Phase 3 clinical trials or the commercialization of E2F Decoy. We do not carry key man life insurance on our officers or key
employees except for Mr. McLaughlin.

We have employment agreements with Mr. McLaughlin, Richard P. Powers, our vice president and chief financial
officer, Todd J. Lorenz, our chief medical officer, Leslie M. McEvoy, our senior vice president, research, James Z. Huang, our
senior vice president, commercial operations and business development, and Patrick Broderick, our vice president and general
counsel. Each of our officers and key employees may terminate their employment without notice and without cause or good
reason. We currently are not aware that any officer or key employee is planning to leave or retire.

In addition, our growth will require hiring a significant number of qualified scientific, commercial and administrative
personnel. Accordingly, recruiting and retaining such personnel in the future will be critical to our success. There is intense
competition from other companies and research and academic institutions for qualified personnel in the areas of our activities.
Qur offices are located in the San Francisco Bay Area, where competition for personnel with biopharmaceutical skills is intense.
If we fail to identify, attract, retain and motivate these highly skilled personnel, we may be unable to continue our development
and commercialization activities.
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If we are unable to manage any necessary growth, we may not be able to commercialize our product candidates, including
E2F Decoy.

We expanded our workforce, located in both California and Pennsylvania from 72 full-time employees on December 31,
2003 to 132 full-time employees on December 31, 2004. To commercialize E2F Decoy, we will be required to improve existing
and implement new operational and financial systems, procedures and controls and expand, train and manage our employee base.
There can be no assurance that our current and planned personnel, systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support
such growth. If we are unable to manage any necessary growth effectively, our business could be harmed.

Risks Related to Our Industry
We fuce the risk of product liability claims and may not be able to obtain insurance.

Our business exposes us to the risk of product liability claims that is inherent in the testing, manufacturing, and
marketing of drugs and related devices. Although we have product liability and clinical trial liability insurance that we believe is
appropriate, this insurance is subject to deductibles and coverage limitations. We may not be able to obtain or maintain adequate
protection against potential liabilities. In addition, if any of our product candidates are approved for marketing, we may seek
additional insurance coverage. If we are unable to obtain insurance at acceptable cost or on acceptable terms with adequate
coverage or otherwise protect against potential product liability claims, we will be exposed to significant liabilities, which may
harm our business. These liabilities could prevent or interfere with our product commercialization efforts. Defending a suit,
regardless of merit, could be costly, could divert management attention and might result in adverse publicity or reduced
acceptance of our products in the market.

Our operations involve hazardous materials and we must comply with environmental laws and regulations, which can be
expensive.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, including chemicals and
radioactive and biological materials. OQur operations also produce hazardous waste products. We are subject to a variety of
federal, state and local regulations relating to the use, handling, storage and disposal of these materials. We generally contract
with third parties for the disposal of such substances and store certain low-level radioactive waste at our facility until the materials
are no longer considered radioactive. We cannot eliminate the risk of accidental contamination or injury from these materials. We
may be required to incur substantial costs to comply with current or future environmental and safety regulations. If an accident or
contamination occurred, we would likely incur significant costs associated with civil penalties or criminal fines and in complying
with environmental laws and regulations. We do not have any insurance for liabilities arising from hazardous materials.
Compliance with environmental laws and regulations is expensive, and current or future environmental regulation may impair our
research, development or production efforts.

The life sciences industry is highly competitive and subject to rapid technological change.

The life sciences industry is highly competitive and subject to rapid and profound technological change. Our present and
potential competitors include major pharmaceutical companies, as well as specialized biotechnology and life sciences firms in the
United States and in other countries. Most of these companies have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing
resources than we do. Additional mergers and acquisitions in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries may result in even
more resources being concentrated in our competitors. Our existing or prospective competitors may develop processes or
products that are more effective than ours or be more effective at implementing their technologies to develop commercial
products faster. Our competitors may succeed
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in obtaining patent protection and/or receiving regulatory approval for commercializing products before us. Developments by our
competitors may render our product candidates obsolete or non-competitive.

We also experience competition from universities and other research institutions, and we frequently compete with others
in acquiring technology from those sources. These industries have undergone, and are expected to continue to undergo, rapid and
significant technological change, and we expect competition to intensify as technical advances in each field are made and become
more widely known. There can be no assurance that others will not develop technologies with significant advantages over those
that we are seeking to develop. Any such development could harm our business.

Legislative or regulatory reform of the healthcare system may affect our ability to sell our products profitably.

In both the United States and certain foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory
proposals to change the healthcare system in ways that could impact upon our ability to sell our products profitably. In the United
States in recent years, new legislation has been proposed at the federal and state levels that would effect major changes in the
healthcare system, either nationaily or at the state level. These proposals have included prescription drug benefit proposals for
Medicare beneficiaries introduced in Congress. Legislation creating a prescription drug benefit and making certain changes in
Medicare reimbursement has recently been enacted by Congress. Given this legislation's recent enactment, it is still too early to
determine its impact on the pharmaceutical industry and our business. Further federal and state proposals are likely, More
recently, administrative proposals are pending that would change the method for calculating the reimbursement of certain drugs.
The potential for adoption of these proposals may affect our ability to raise capital, obtain additional collaborators or market our
products. Such proposals, if enacted, may reduce our revenues, increase our expenses or limit the markets for our products. In
particular, we expect to experience pricing pressures in connection with the sale of our products due to the trend toward managed
health care, the increasing influence of health maintenance organizations and additional legislative proposals.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If we are unable to obtain and maintain protection for the intellectual property incorporated into our products, the value of
our technology and products will be adversely affected.

Our success will depend in large part on our ability or the ability of our licensors to obtain and maintain protection in the
United States and other countries for the intellectual property incorporated into our products. As of December 31, 2004, we had
41 issued United States and foreign patents and 41 pending United States and foreign patent applications. The patent situation in
the field of biotechnology and pharmaceuticals generally is highly uncertain and involves complex legal and scientific questions.
Neither we nor our licensors may be able to obtain additional issued patents relating to our technology. Even if issued, patents
may be challenged, narrowed, invalidated, or circumvented, which could limit our ability to stop competitors from marketing
similar products or limit the length of the term of patent protection we may have for our products. In addition, our patents and our
licensors' patents may not afford us protection against competitors with similar technology. Because patent applications in the
United States and many foreign jurisdictions are typically not published until 18 months after filing, or in some cases not at all,
and because publications of discoveries in the scientific literature often lag behind actual discoveries, neither we nor our licensors
can be certain that we or they were the first to make the inventions claimed in issued patents or pending patent applications, or
that we or they were the first to file for protection of the inventions set forth in these patent applications.

We also rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect our interests in proprietary know-how

that is not patentable and for processes for which patents are difficult to enforce. We cannot be certain that we will be able to
protect our trade secrets adequately. Any leak of
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confidential data into the public domain or to third parties could allow our competitors to learn our trade secrets.

Ifwe lose our licenses from Stanford University or The Brigham and Women's Hospital we will not be able to continue our
business.

We hold licenses from The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University and The Brigham and Women's
Hospital, Inc. for patents, patent applications and know-how covering our technology generally and E2F Decoy specifically.
These license agreements impose various diligence, commercialization, sublicensing, royalty, insurance, and other obligations on
us. If we fail to comply with the obligations in the license agreements, the licensor may have the right to terminate the license and
we may not be able to market products that were covered by the license including E2F Decoy. To date, we have met all of our
obligations under these agreements.

We may incur substantial costs enforcing our patents, defending against third-party patents, invalidating third-party patents
or licensing third-party intellectual property, as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other
intellectual property rights.

We may not have rights under some patents or patent applications that would be infringed by technologies that we use in
our research, drug targets that we select, or product candidates that we seek to develop and commercialize. Third parties may own
or control these patents and patent applications in the United States and abroad. These third parties could bring claims against us
or our collaborators that would cause us to incur substantial expenses and, if successful against us, could cause us to pay
substantial damages. Further, if a patent infringement suit were brought against us or our collaborators, we or they could be forced
to stop or delay research, development, manufacturing or sales of the product or product candidate that is the subject of the suit.
We or our collaborators therefore may choose to seek, or be required to seek, a license from the third party and would most likely
be required to pay license fees or royalties or both. These licenses may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we
or our collaborators were able to obtain a license, the rights may be nonexclusive, which would give our competitors access to the
same intellectual property. Ultimately, we could be prevented from commercializing a product, or forced to cease some aspect of
our business operations, as a result of patent infringement claims, which could harm our business.

There has been substantial litigation and other proceedings regarding patent and other intellectual property rights in the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. Although we are not currently a party to any patent litigation or any other
adversarial proceeding, including any interference proceeding declared before the United States Patent and Trademark Office,
regarding intellectual property rights with respect to our products and technology, we may become so in the future. We are not
currently aware of any actual or potential infringement claim involving our intellectual property rights. The cost to us of any
patent litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. The outcome of patent litigation is subject
to uncertainties that cannot be adequately quantified in advance, including the demeanor and credibility of witnesses and the
identity of the adverse party, especially in biotechnology related patent cases that may turn on the testimony of experts as to
technical facts upon which experts may reasonably disagree. Some of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of such
litigation or proceedings more effectively than we can because of their substantially greater financial resources. If a patent or
other proceeding is resolved against us, we may be enjoined from researching, developing, manufacturing or commercializing our
products without a license from the other party and we may be held liable for significant damages. We may not be able to obtain
any required license on commercially acceptable terms or at all.

Uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation of patent litigation or other proceedings could harm our
ability to compete in the marketplace. Patent litigation and other proceedings may also absorb significant management time.
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We may not be successful in our efforts to expand our portfolio of products and develop additional delivery technologies.

A key element of our strategy is to discover, develop and commercialize a portfolio of new drugs in addition to E2F
Decoy, and technologies to deliver those drugs safely and efficiently. We are seeking to do so through our internal research
programs and in-licensing. A significant portion of the research that we are conducting involves new and unproven technologies.
Research programs to identify new disease targets, product candidates and delivery technologies require substantial technical,
financial and human resources whether or not any candidates or technologies are ultimately identified. Our research programs
may initially show promise in identifying potential product candidates or delivery technologies, yet fail to yield product
candidates or delivery technologies for clinical development for any of the following reasons:

e research methodology used may not be successful in identifying potential product candidates;
o potential delivery technologies may not safely or efficiently deliver our drugs; and

e product candidates may on further study be shown to have harmful side effects or other characteristics that indicate
they are unlikely to be effective drugs.

If we are unable to discover suitable potential product candidates or develop additional delivery technologies through
internal research programs or in-license suitable products or delivery technologies on acceptable business terms, our business
prospects will suffer. .

Other Risks

Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rules and regulations, such as expensing of stock options, could result in
unfavorable accounting charges or require us to change our compensation policies.

Accounting methods and policies for biopharmaceutical companies, including policies governing revenue recognition,
expenses, accounting for stock options and in-process research and development costs are subject to further review, interpretation
and guidance from relevant accounting authorities, including the Securities and Exchange Commission. Changes to, or
interpretations of, accounting methods or policies in the future may require us to reclassify, restate or otherwise change or revise
our financial statements, including those contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. Historically, we have not been
required to record stock-based compensation charges if the employee's stock option exercise price equals or exceeds the fair value
of our common stock at the date of grant. The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued in December 2004 Statement of
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised) which will require us to record expense for the fair value of stock options granted and
purchases under employee stock purchase plans beginning June 15, 2005. When we change our accounting policy to record
expense for the fair value of stock options granted and shares purchased, our operating expenses will increase. We rely heavily on
stock options to motivate existing employees and attract new employees. When we are required to expense stock options, we may
choose to reduce our reliance on stock options as a motivation tool. If we reduce our use of stock options, it may be more difficult
for us to attract and retain qualified employees. If we do not reduce our reliance on stock options, our reported losses will
increase.
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Anti-takeover defenses that we have in place could prevent or frustrate attempts by stockholders to change the direction or
management of the company.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and applicable provisions of Delaware law may make it more
difficult for or prevent a third party from acquiring control of us without the approval of our board of directors. These provisions:

o establish a classified board of directors, so that not all members of our board may be elected at one time;
e sct limitations on the removal of directors;
o limit who may call a special meeting of stockholders;

¢ establish advance agreement requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing
matters that can be acted upon at stockholder meetings;

e prohibit stockholder action by written consent, thereby requiring all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of
our stockholders; and

e provide our board of directors the ability to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock without
stockholder approval.

These provisions may have the effect of entrenching our management team and may deprive you of the opportunity to
sell your shares to potential acquirors at a premium over prevailing prices. This potential inability to obtain a control premium

could reduce the price of our common stock.

Our principal stockholders and management own a significant percentage of our stock and will be able to exercise significant
influence.

Our (a) executive officers and (b) directors and principal stockholders, together with their affiliates, as of December 31,
2004 beneficially owned approximately 7.6 percent and 51.3 percent of our voting stock, respectively, including shares subject to
outstanding options. Our executive officers are not affiliated with any of our directors, principal stockholders or their affiliates.
These stockholders will likely be able to determine the composition of our board of directors, possess the voting power to
approve all matters requiring stockholder approval, and continue to have significant influence over our operations. The interests
of these stockholders may be different than the interests of other stockholders on these matters. This concentration of ownership
could also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in our control or otherwise discouraging a potential acquirer from
attempting to obtain control of us, which in turn could reduce the price of our common stock.

If our stock price is volatile, purchasers of our common stock could incur substantial losses.

Our stock price is likely to be volatile. The stock market in general and the market for biotechnology companies in
particular have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.
The price for our common stock may be influenced by many factors, including:

e results of our clinical trials;

o failure of any of our product candidates, if approved, to achieve commercial success;

e developments concerning our collaboration with BMS;

e regulatory developments in the United States and foreign countries;

e developments or disputes concerning patents or other proprietary rights;

e  ability to manufacture our products to commercial standards;
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e public concern over our prodcts;
e litigation;
o the departure of key personnel;
o future sales of our common stock;
¢ variations in our financial results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us;
e changes in the structure of healthcare payment systems;
+ investors' perceptions of us;. and
s  general economic, industry and market conditions.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

. The financial statements required by this item are submitted as a separate section of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K/A. See Item 15 of Part IV.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2004, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) were sufficiently effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and Form 10-K.

Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2004 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.

Limirations on the effectiveness of controls.

Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure
controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all error and ali fraud. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within Corgentech have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple
error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future
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conditions; over time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

In November 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors awarded the following executive officers
restricted stock awards:

Number of shares
subject to restricted

Name Position stock award
Patrick Broderick ........... Vice President, General Counse!l and Corporate Secretary 2,000
Senior Vice President, Commercial Operations and Business
James Huang .................. Development 2,000
Todd Lorenz........ccco...... Chief Medical Officer 1,000
Leslie McEvoy ............... Senior Vice President, Research 2,000
John P. McLaughlin........ President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 2,000
Richard P. Powers.......... Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2,000

The fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of the restricted stock award was $19.09. The shares subject to .
the restricted stock award will vest in full on November 19, 2005, subject to acceleration in certain circumstances.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Corgentech Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Corgentech Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2004 and the
related statements of operations, convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Corgentech Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Palo Alto, California
January 25, 2005 except for Note 11 as to
which the date is March 11, 2005
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PART 11
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our directors will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 7, 2005, under the caption "Proposal 1—Election of Directors" and is
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. Information concerning our Audit Committee and Financial
Expert is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Audit Committee” to be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement.
Information concerning procedures for recommending directors is incorporated by reference to the section entitied "Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee” to be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement. Information concerning our Executive
Officers is set forth under "Executive Officers and Key Employees" in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A and is
incorporated herein by reference. Information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934 is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance," to be
contained in our definitive Proxy Statement. Information concerning our code of conduct is incorporated by reference to the
section entitled "Code of Conduct,” to be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 7, 2005, under the caption "Executive Compensation," and is hereby
incorporated by reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 7, 2005, under the caption "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management" and "Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans," and is hereby
incorporated by reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 7, 2005, under the caption "Certain Transactions,” and is hereby
incorporated by reference.
Ttem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2005

Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 7, 2005, under the caption "Proposal 2—Ratification of Selection of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm," and is hereby incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A:

1. Financial Statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm................. 54
Notes to Financial StAteMENLS.........cocoveiiiineiiciie ettt ebern e

Financial Statement Schedules—None.

Sl

Exhibits—See Exhibit Index
(b) Exhibits

See Item 15(a) above.
{c) Financial Statement Schedule

See Item 15(a) above.
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Corgentech Inc.
Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash €QUIVAIBIES........covuvciieiririr ettt eb bbb s
ShOTt-term INVESIMENLS..........covvrnririerrsiesesssesseeser e SOV
Contract revenue receivable, related Party. ...t s
Prepaid expenses and other CUITEnt 8SSETS ........iviviirirci e
Notes receivable from eMPIOYEES .........ccvuirirriniii e et
TOLA] CUITENE ASSELS.....cuociririirei ettt et sttt et ettt
Property and €qQUIPIMENt, NEE ...............ooveeeversveeesreesseeeresseesseess s essssssassesees s ees et ee oo
RESHICIEA CASH. ..ot et e
Notes receivable from employees...........ocovevveccriiiiiiineneereee e et ettt
Oher JONZ-TEIIN BSSELS......eiveriuriiierieretriere bt eteteat et es e et bes et re st s ebeba s see et betnee st saesneeereebabebeteons et sana

TOtAT ASSES .iieviiiiriii ittt rreetr e e saessr e e s stb s e bt s b eessraesaeesbessnnesreesraeas et e bt e ee st rareenrane e

Liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity (deficit)
Current liabilities:

Bank OVEIArafl..... ...ttt et s
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt et ettt ba ettt e ee bbb bt
Current portion of deferred revenue, related Party .......cooveeieiiiiciic e
Current portion of 1ong-term debt.........ccooooiiiiciire et et
Accrued clinical trial HabIIHES ..o
Other acCrued HaBilItIES .....oocoveviiiiiiise ettt ettt b s s st aa s seeene s eb e
Refundable EXErCISE PIICE ....ovvvuiuuiiiieiiictis ettt e
Total CUrTent HADIIILES ...c.vocovieiviiiiieer ettt et
Deferred revenue, related party, net of CUITent POTHON ......cvevvermieieeiiireir et
Long-term debt, €SS CUITENE POTTION.......ccirircreerreririrerieereirieneiereire st st sttt na e s s sse e sesene
Deferred rent and accrued 105S 0N SUDIEASE ......cc.vvoviiieinceeicncieee et

Commitments
Convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value;
18,367,259 and none shares authorized at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004,

respectively; 17,327,139 and none shares designated, issued and outstanding at December 31,
2003 and December 31, 2004, reSPECtIVELY. ...cioviiiieiiec et

Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; none and 5,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2003

and 2004, respectively; none issued or outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2004,

TS PECTIVELY oo rre ettt ettt ettt e b ekt e b et s btk e bbbt et b ket bene i

Common stock, $0.001 par value: 21,932,500 and 100,000,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively; 2,441,570 and 27,731,612 shares issued and

December 31,

outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively ........cviririeromienniecrcernrennnnes

Additional paid-in CAPIAL.......ccoviririerri e
Notes receivable from officers...........ccoeevnnnnne. ettt ettt b bbbt ettt
Deferred stock COMPENSALION........ovrerirriirieresiesceciernissssssiss s ssicearessisssssairesnisansnsnisssssssasnsssssas
Accumulated other COMPTEheNSIVE INCOIME ....ecvviiuiviiriiiiereee et es e ebe bt ebens
AcCUMUIAEd AETICHE 1..ovvviecei ettt ea e e enee e ane
Total stockholders' equity (defiCit) ..ottt

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (defiCit)......cvrrerecrrcniiii s

See accompanying notes.
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2003 2004
$54,590 $17,312
— 97,866
6,941 7,337
2,696 3,702
79 98
64,306 126,315
2,278 3,492
638 668
168 60
1,933 1.013
$69323 _ $131548
$1,322 $—
3,334 4,019
7,692 7,692
454 490
2,592 235
1376 5,018
519 444
17,289 17,898
15,571 7,878
627 192
322 446
114,332 —
2 28
41,480 264,317
(43) (40)
(18,300)  (16,977)
— (389)
(101.957) __ (141,805)
(78.818) 105.134
$69.323 _ $131.548




Corgentech Inc.
Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Contract revenue, related Party ........cccoieriminnin e

Operating exp

Research and development

General and

Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense
Net loss..........
Preferred stock deemed dividend

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders

Shares used to
stockholders

enses;
BAMUNISTIALIVE ©vveveieeiieceie et esa s ebe e st n et reannesreensesranere

compute basic and diluted net loss attributable to common

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
S— $8,678 $36,382
21,536 46,004 62,997
3,206 6.067 15,013
24742 52,071 78,010
(24,742) (43,393) (41,628)
471 416 1,918
(1.376) (20.190) (138)
(25,647) (63,167) (39,848)
—  (14407) —
$(25.647) $(77.574) $(39.848)
$(14.38) §(37.90) $(1.63)
1,783,564 2046944 24499022
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Corgentech Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004
Operating activities
NEELOSS ...ttt ettt b st bbbt a s JOTT $(25,647) $(63.167) $(39,848)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation...........cccvveriiereininciiiniee e 261 483 926
Non-cash COMPENSAtION EXPENSE .......ceueiereecurreeriiriorerireserareeevesessesssreeesesenes 146 1,170 5,896
NO-Cash INEETESt EXPEISE ... vvvveiiricreree et raectererereressiesseetesesetesssetssesssssesesesnces 1,285 20,000 —
Issuance of equity for services rendered and licenses, net.......c.occceveereericncen, 821 1,295 —
Forgiveness of note Teceivable.........ovoviieiiinienireeercneee e — 71 3
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other CurTent assets .......cccovvvvreerieererinrennenenenieneenne (400) (1,948) (1,006)
Contract revenue receivable, related party........ococeineininnniniccnncnnennenn — (6,941) (396)
Notes receivable from employees...........ccoevvrinconnrcn e (195) 23 89
ReStrCted Cash.....c.oviiii e e 173 (638) (30)
Other LONZ-LEITIL ASSEIS. c...veveieieieeiireeieieies e esese s seae et nanas 45 (1,896) 920
AcCoUNTS PAYADIE ... e 1,302 1,672 685
Accrued clinical trial Habilities .......cccoovevieivieiiiiir e 1,913 679 (2,357)
Other accrued Habilities .......occviieeiiieiei e 626 (26) 3,642
Deferred revenue, related PaArtY......ooovvevervrvrinnienirirecisisveeesreeneeer — 23,263 (7,693)
Long-term Habilities ........o.ccovieviriinricerecr s (108) — —
Deferred rent and accrual for loss on subleased property ........c..cocooveerrnnnne (200) 170 124
Net cash used in Operating aCtIVItIES ........ccoeverrveereirienteees e seseesees (19.978) (25,790) (39.045)
Investing activities
Purchase of property and eqUIPIMENt...........ccoveirmierrenieieeniencnee e enens (1,152) (1,164) (2,140)
Purchase of Short-term iNVESHMENLS ........ccc.vevviviinsiaeeeriens i cenre s (22,429) (1,000) (321,330)
Sale of ShOM-{erM INVESTIMENES ......cvvvverireerecveieieneieierenesres b sbets s s eassesns 8,760 16.929 223,075
Net cash provided by (used in) investing aCtiVItiES ....coocovviveveirieiieriresieee e (14.821) 14,765 (100.395)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible preferred stock, net of share issuance
COSLES Lottt iuierte s e et eese et neeettatae e bt atseeh e s et eateeat et e ean ekt a et g e bt eane Rt eabenheesta et saeenres 42,375 29,954 —
Proceeds from issuance of bridge Loans........c.coeeevvirineevnrrneireisateeecers e eeeas 4,500 20,000 —
Proceeds from issuance of equipment 10ans ........cc.oocccevireciineniennncnneeerenns — 1,409 —
Repayment of equipment 10anS......c...ccccooiiimiinrinic e — (328) 421
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, Net.........ccooevvvieiriieiiirenienncrieereeenn, 50 683 103,905
Bank overdrafl............ocoeiiiiei s 609 712 (1.322)
Net cash provided by financing activities..........ccocovvvvieierererreinnererosnerecnesenenen, 47.534 52.430 102,162
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..........c.ccoveeviiecriniiievininne. 12,735 41,403 (37,278)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of PeTiod.......covervncnnnnincrinenen, 450 13,185 54,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Period ...........cc.ovvivervrecreirrsersieeees s $13.185 $54.590 $17.312
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information
TIEETESE PRI ...veovvveiriie ettt st bt e s 383 $184 $116
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities
Issuance of warrants for bridge 10a1..........cccovreininirire e, $1.285 $5.479 $—
Issuance of preferred stock for professional SErvices ..............ovvenrverrereresinerrenes $821 $— $—
Issuance of preferred stock as repayment of bridge 10ans.........cccc.evevveveeervinnaee, $4.500 $20.000 $—
Bridge loan interest paid with preferred Stock..........oovvviriiieienerrieresires e $56 $— $—

See accompanying notes.
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Corgentech Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization, Business, and Basis of Presentation

Corgentech Inc. (the "Company") is a biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery, development and
commercialization of a new class of therapeutics called transcription factor decoys, or TF decoys. The Company is focused on TF
decoys initially for the treatment of cardiovascular disease, inflammatory diseases and cancer.

The Company is creating a pipeline of novel therapeutics based on its proprietary TF decoy technology. The Company's
lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, is currently in clinical trials for the prevention of coronary artery bypass graft failure. The
Company evaluated its lead product candidate, E2F Decoy, a combination drug and delivery device, in two Phase 3 clinical trials
during 2004 for the prevention of vein graft failure. The first of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT 111, which evaluated E2F
Decoy in patients undergoing peripheral bypass graft surgeries (in the leg), did not meet its primary or secondary endpoints. The
second of the two Phase 3 trials, called PREVENT 1V, is evaluating patients undergoing coronary artery bypass graft, or CABG,
surgeries. The Company is also developing E2F Decoy for the prevention of arterio-venous, or AV, graft failure and completed
enrollment of a Phase 1/2 clinical trial for this indication in late 2004. E2F Decoy has received Fast Track designation from the
FDA for both the prevention of vein graft failure and AV graft failure. The Company has a world-wide collaborative agreement
with BMS for the development and commercialization of E2F Decoy for all indications. The Company also has additional TF
decoys in pre-clinical development for the treatment of inflammatory diseases such as eczema, and cancer.

The Company anticipates working on a number of long-term development projects which will involve experimental and
unproven technology. The projects may require many years and substantial expenditures to complete, and may ultimately be
unsuccessful. The Company will need to obtain additional funds from outside sources to continue its research and development
activities, fund operating expenses, pursue regulatory approvals, and build production, sales, and marketing capabilities, as
necessary. If the Company is unable to develop, receive approval for or successfully commercialize its drug candidate, it may
never be profitable and have to curtail its operations.

Need to Raise Additional Capital

The Company has incurred significant net losses and negative cash flows from operations since its inception. At
December 31, 2003 and 2004, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $102.0 million and $141.8 million, respectively.

[f adequate funds are not available, the Company may be required to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or
more of its development programs or obtain funds through collaborative arrangements with others that may require the Company
to relinquish rights to certain of its technologies, product candidates, or products that the Company would otherwise seek to
develop or commercialize itself. The Company intends to raise additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, if
available on terms acceptable to the Company.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
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reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Clinical Trials Accounting

The Company records accruals for estimated clinical study costs, comprising work performed by contract research
organizations and participating hospitals. These costs are a significant component of research and development expenses. The
Company accrues costs for clinical studies performed by contract research organizations based on estimates of work performed
under the contracts. Costs of setting up hospital sites for participation in the trials are accrued immediately. Hospital costs related
to patient enroliment are accrued as patients are entered in the trial. Payments to hospitals for post-surgery patient angiograms are
accrued at the time of the performance of the angiogram.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues associated with the Company's collaboration with BMS consist of non-refundable, up-front license fees and
reimbursement of development expenses.

The Company uses revenue recognition criteria outlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, "Revenue Recognition”
and Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue 00-21 "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables" ("EITF 00-21").
Accordingly, revenue arrangements with multiple deliverable items are divided into separate units of accounting if certain criteria
are met, including whether the delivered item has stand-alone value to the customer and whether there 1s objective and reliable
evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items. The consideration received is allocated among the separate units of accounting
based on their respective fair values, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applied to each of the separate units.
Revenues from licensing agreements are recognized based on the performance requirements of the agreement. Non-refundable
up-front fees, where the Company has an ongoing involvement or performance obligation, are generally recorded as deferred
revenue in the balance sheet and amortized into license fees in the statements of operations over the estimated term of the
performance obligation.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase to
be cash equivalents.

Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. The Company has classified
its entire investment portfolio as available-for-sale. The Company views its available-for-sale portfolio as available for use in
current operations. Accordingly, the Company has classified all investments as short-term, even though the stated maturity may be
one year or more beyond the current balance sheet date. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value based on quoted
market prices, with unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), as a separate
component of stockholders' equity (deficit).

Realized gains and losses and declines in value, if any, judged to be other than temporary on available-for-sale securities

are reported in other income or expense. When securities are sold, any associated unrealized gain or loss recorded as a separate
component of stockholders' equity is '
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reclassified out of stockholders' equity on a specific-identification basis and recorded in earnings for the period.
Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents and short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with four
high-credit quality financial institutions. Such investments are generally in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The Company is
exposed to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institutions holding the cash and cash equivalents to the extent of the
amount recorded on the balance sheets. Short-term investments are invested in high-credit quality commercial paper, corporate
bonds and government agency securities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to five years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ("SFAS No. 144™), the Company reviews long-lived assets, including property
and equipment, for impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be fully recoverable. Under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount.
Impairment, if any, is assessed using discounted cash flows or other appropriate measures of fair value. Through December 31,
2004, there have been no such losses.

Research and Development

Research and development costs include related salaries, contractor fees, administrative expenses, and allocations of
research related overhead costs. In accordance with SFAS No. 2, Accounting for Research and Development Costs, such costs are
expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for employee stock options using the intrinsic-value method in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation ("FIN") No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB
No. 25, and related interpretations and has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS
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No. 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123 and APB
Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the
effects of an entity's accounting policy with respect to employee stock compensation on reported net loss. The Company has
elected to continue to follow the intrinsic-value method of accounting as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25. The information
regarding pro forma net loss as required by SFAS No. 123 has been determined as if the Company had accounted for its
employee stock options under the fair value method of that Statement. The resulting effect on net losses to date pursuant to SFAS
No. 123 is not likely to be representative of the effects on net loss pursuant to SFAS No. 123 in future years, since future years are
likely to include additional grants and the irregular impact of future years' vesting.

The following table illustrates the weighted-average assumptions for the Black-Scholes model used in determining the
fair value of options granted to employees:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004
Stock option plans ESPP
Dividend yield........coocovieiiniireeerene e — — — — — —
Risk-free Interest 1ate .........ccovvvevreemverecrenrmenincrirveoreneenes 3.8% 2.9% 3.1% — — 1.40%
VOlatility...ccoeeviirerinececieceeee e 80% 80% 86% — — 93%
Expected life. ..o 4 years 4 years 4 years — — 6 months

The Company has recorded deferred stock compensation with respect to options granted to employees of $33,000,
$19.1 million and $1.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, representing the
difference between the exercise price of the options and the deemed fair value of the common stock. The deferred stock
compensation is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the related vesting terms of the options. Such total amortization
expense amounted to $130,000, $965,000 and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In November 2004, the Company granted 155,667 shares of restricted stock with an exercise price of $0, and recorded
deferred stock compensation of $3.0 million. The Company recorded employee restricted stock compensation expense of
$352,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The expected future amortization expense for deferred compensation as of December 31, 2004 is as follows (in
thousands):

2005 .o R R b $7,676
2000ttt et bR bbbt 5,048
2007 ittt e bR R e bbb e n bt et 4,219
2008 e R e e e b 34

$16.977
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The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per common share had the Company applied the fair
value provisions of SFAS No. 123 to employee stock compensation:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders, as reported...........cocovviiiicereronnn $(25,647) $(77,574) $(39,848)
Plus: Employee stock compensation expense based on intrinsic value method....... 129 965 5,124
Less: Employee stock compensation expense determined under the fair value

method fOr all AWATAS ......o.vve ittt et e eebenns (159) (1.292) (6.913)
PrO fOrMA NEL I0SS......ouvviiveieieiiiesie ettt $(25.677) $(77.901) $(41.637)
Net loss per common share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic and diluted, 88 TEPOTLEd .......ocovviiverivrr e s st eessees e sessneeses $(14.38) $(37.90) $(.63)
Basic and diluted, pro forma ........coocovrrrreeicerenees e $(14.40) $(38.06) $(1.70)

Stock compensation arrangements to nonemployees are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123, as amended by
SFAS No. 148, and EITF No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring,
or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, using a fair value approach. The compensation costs of these arrangements are
subject to remeasurement over the vesting terms as earned.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale securities, in accordance
with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method for income taxes as required by SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax
reporting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when
the differences are expected to reverse. Currently there is no provision for income taxes as the Company has incurred net losses to
date.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, debt obligations and other accrued
Habilities but excluding short-term investments, are carried at cost, which management believes approximates fair value given
their short-term nature.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment” ("SFAS 123R"), which
replaces SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," ("SFAS 123") and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25,

"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock
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options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values beginning with the first interim or annual period
after June 15, 2003, with early adoption encouraged. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS 123 no longer
will be an alternative to financial statement recognition. The Company is required to adopt SFAS 123R in the third quarter of
fiscal 2005, beginning July 1, 2005, Under SFAS 123R, the Company must determine the appropriate fair value model to be used
for valuing share-based payments, the amortization method for compensation cost and the transition method to be used at date of
adoption. The transition methods include prospective and retroactive adoption options. Under the retroactive option, prior periods
may be restated either as of the beginning of the year of adoption or for all periods presented. The prospective method requires
that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested stock options and restricted stock at the beginning of the first quarter of
adoption of SFAS 123R, while the retroactive methods would record compensation expense for all unvested stock options and
restricted stock beginning with the first period restated. The Company is evaluating the requirements of SFAS 123R and expects
that the adoption of SFAS 123R will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations and earnings per
share. The Company has not yet determined the method of adoption or the effect of adopting SFAS 123R, and it has not
determined whether the adoption will result in amounts that are similar to the current pro forma disclosures under SFAS 123.

In March 2004, the FASB approved the consensus reached on the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 03-1,
"The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments." The Issue's objective is to
provide guidance for identifying other-than-temporarily impaired investments. EITF 03-1 also provides new disclosure
requirements for investments that are deemed to be temporarily impaired. In September 2004, the FASB issued a FASB Staff
Position (FSP) EITF 03-1-1 that delays the effective date of the measurement and recognition guidance in EITF 03-1 until further
notice. The disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 are effective with this annual report for fiscal 2004. Once the FASB reaches a
final decision on the measurement and recognition provisions, the company will evaluate the impact of the adoption of the
accounting provisions of EITF 03-1.

2. Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period, without consideration of additional potential common shares. Diluted net loss per share is
computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive potential common
shares for the period determined using the treasury-stock method. For purposes of this calculation, common stock subject to
repurchase by the Company, preferred stock, options, and warrants are considered to be potential
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common shares and are only included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share when their effect is dilutive.

Historical
Numerator:
Net loss attributable to common stockholders ........cooevvieinincnnnee,
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding..........ccccoeocvcenvences
Less: Weighted-average unvested common shares subject to
TEPUICHASE. ....eoeeeiiiiet ettt bbb beees
Denominator for basic and diluted net loss per common share
attributable to common stockholders ..........ccoevineiiinnciisienne

Basic and diluted net loss per common share attributable to common
SLOCKNOIAETS. ..cvoevverer et

Historical outstanding dilutive securities not included in diluted
net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
calculation

Preferred Stock ..o e

Options to purchase common StOCK .......cocovvririrenirienonennrns s

WAITAILS ..ottt ettt ettt et ee e s ee s st enesabeananenean
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Years ended December 31,

2002

2003

2004

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

$(25,647) $(77,574) $(39,848)
2,151,954 2,332,330 24,888,560
(368.390) (285.386) (389.538)
1,783,564 2,046 944 24.499.022
$(14.38) $(37.90) $(1.63)
11,194,093 17,327,139 —
449,951 1,820,654 2,801,323
164,524 979.780 —
11.808.568 20.127.573 2,801,323




3. Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The following is a summary of the fair value of available-for-sale securities as at December 31, 2003 and December 31,
2004 (in thousands).

December 31, 2003
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
MOTEAZE SECUTTHES .......ceeecvvveeieecerene e sssese s $53.450 $— §— $53.450
TOAL et $53.450 §— §— $53.450
Reported as:
Cash and cash equivalents ........c.ccccooieirvenerecernenenn, $53.450 $— §— $53.450
December 31, 2004
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. COrPOrate SECUMIES .....vovvvveerreiveviviecvceeeiarseeseesesseseaneens $31,901 $— $(153) $31,748
MUniCipal SECUTTEIES ......v.overeiieeeeenae vt eenra s 27,550 — — 27,550
U.S. government SECUtIES .....vevrreerirreerireesrernessesnsesieneess 43.061 — (236) 42,825
TOtAL ettt $102.512 $— $(389) $102,123
Reported as:
Cash and cash equivalents ........ccccovverinrese e, $4,257 $— $— $4,257
Short-term INVEStMENTS ........c.oovvivurrreee e e 98.255 — (389) 97,866
$102.,512 $— $(389) $102,123
December 31, 2004
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. corporate and U.S. government securities maturing
WILhIN 1 YEAT.......coceivevieieceieenceceee e $66,697 $— $(324) 366,373
U.S. corporate and U.S. government securities maturing
between 1 10 2 YEarS......occviicvireirieninieee e eeteeecete e eree 8,265 — (65) 8,200
Municipal securities maturing within 1 year ...........ccceceeinana. 27.550 — — 27.550
Total available-for-sale SECUTItIES............ccocoovvvrvvrririrren. $102.512 $— $(389) $102,123

4. License and Collaboration Agreements
Collaboration Agreement

In October 2003, the Company entered into agreements with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company ("BMS") to develop,
manufacture and commercialize E2F Decoy. In connection with the agreements, BMS will co-promote E2F Decoy in the United

States and share equally in profits and losses. Additionally, the Company has granted BMS the exclusive right to commercialize
E2F Decoy outside the United States pursuant to a royalty-bearing license. BMS has the right to record all product sales.

69




In connection with the collaboration, BMS paid the Company $45,000,000, consisting of non-refundable, up-front
license fees of $25,000,000 and an additional $20,000,000 for the purchase of 2,079,002 shares of Series D convertible preferred
stock at $9.62 per share. The rights and features of Series D convertible preferred stock are substantially the same as Series C
preferred stock. The collaboration also provides additional funding including payment for the majority of ongoing costs of
developing E2F Decoy for CABG, PBG and AV graft failure including costs incurred in connection with performing nonclinical
and clinical studies of the product for these indications as well as costs of certain related manufacturing, supply and other
activities and substantial regulatory and sales milestones. In addition, BMS is potentially obligated to pay up to $148.5 million in
milestone payments based on the achievement of worldwide regulatory submissions and approvals and up to $320 million in
milestone payments based upon attainment of agreed upon sales levels of E2F Decoy. BMS has the right to terminate this
collaboration, in whole or in part, for convenience with six months advance notice.

In 2003 and 2004, the Company recorded revenues associated with the Company's collaboration with BMS consisting of
$6.9 million and $28.7 million in respect of the reimbursement of development expenses and $1.8 million and $7.7 million in
respect of the amortization of non-refundable, upfront license fees, respectively.

The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University

The Company has an agreement with The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University, ("Stanford™), for
an exclusive worldwide license under patents concerning the use of pressure to deliver TF decoys and other therapeutics into
cells. The Company has the right to grant sublicenses under this agreement. In exchange for the rights licensed from Stanford, the
Company paid Stanford an up-front license fee of $50,000 and issued Stanford 38,315 shares of common stock. In addition,
through December 31, 2004, the Company has paid Stanford $1,642,500 in royalty payments. The Company has also agreed to
pay Stanford an additional $150,000 upon FDA approval of a pressure delivery device. The Company pays Stanford an annual
minimum royalty of $20,000 per year for the life of the agreement. All license fees and milestone payments were charged to
research and development. The Company further agreed to pay royalties to Stanford based on net sales of TF decoys and other
products using pressure technology sold. The royalty obligation extends on a country-by-country basis until the later of seven
years, if no licensed patent issues, or expiration of the last-to-expire patent licensed from Stanford. The Company will also pay
sublicense revenues to Stanford with respect to any upfront payments and research, development, or regulatory milestone
payments, which includes such payments from BMS, that it receives for TF decoys and other products using pressure technology.
There are no other milestone payments due to Stanford under this agreement. Upon the expiration of the last-to-expire patent, the
agreement expires and there is no further royalty obligation to Stanford.

The Brigham and Women's Hospital, Inc.
The Company has an agreement with The Brigham and Women's Hospital, Inc., ("BWH"), for an exclusive worldwide
license under patents and know-how concerning TF decoys and other therapeutics to treat and prevent diseases. Subject to the

prior approval of BWH, the Company has the right to grant sublicenses under this agreement. In exchange for the rights licensed
from BWH, the Company paid BWH an up-front license fee of $50,000 and issued BWH 56,250 shares of our common stock. In
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addition, through December 31, 2004, the Company has paid BWH $1,642,500 in royalty payments. In addition, the Company
agreed to pay BWH an additional $150,000 upon FDA approval of E2F Decoy. The Company also agreed to pay BWH an
annual minimum royalty of $20,000 per year for the life of the agreement. All license fees and milestone payments were charged
to research and development. The Company further agreed to pay royalties to BWH based on net sales of TF decoys. The royalty
obligation extends on a country-by-country basis until the later of seven years, if no licensed patent issues, or the expiration of the
last-to-expire patent licensed from BWH. The Company will also pay sublicense revenues to BWH with respect to any upfront
payments and research, development or regulatory filing milestones payments, which includes such payments from BMS, or
license maintenance fees that it receives for TF decoys. There are no other milestone payments due to BWH under this
agreement. Upon the expiration of the last-to-expire patent, the agreement expires and there is no further royalty obligation to
BWH.

Cyclacel Limited

The Company has an agreement with Cyclacel Limited, ("Cyclacel"), for potential use to assist in the systemic delivery
of TF Decoys. The license grants the Company use of Cyclacel's proprietary Penetratin delivery technology with TF Decoys. In
exchange for the rights licensed from Cyclacel, the Company paid Cyclacel an up-front payment and will pay Cyclacel milestone
payments and royalties if licensed products are commercialized. The license fee was charged to research and development.

Avecia Limited

In December 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with Avecia Limited, ("Avecia"), for the manufacture of:
(a) E2F single strand intermediates, {b) NF-kB Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex products, and (c) HIF-
Decoy single strand intermediates. Avecia received an up-front payment of $1.6 million and will receive up to an additional of
$3.1 million plus reimbursement for raw materials upon the achievement of certain manufacturing and product delivery
milestones. Upon completion of the manufacturing program, but in no event later than March 31, 2005, the Company will notify
Avecia of its intention to continue future manufacturing of the products at Avecia's facility in Grangemouth, Scotland. The
agreement shall continue until the completion of the manufacturing program and may be terminated by either party at any time
prior to completion of the program with 30 day notice.

On March 11, 2005, the Company and Avecia amended their December 2004 agreement. The amendment extended by
one month the period during which Avecia would manufacture certain materials for an additional payment by the Company of
$1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw materials. The agreement was previously amended on March 4, 2005 to specify the
amount of reimbursement to be paid by the Company for previously used raw materials. The agreement does not provide for the
production of material for commercial sale.
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5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2004

Computer equipment and SOTIWATIE ..o $575 $961
Lab @QUIPIMEIL ...ttt b s st et 1,844 2,883
Leasehold IMPIOVEIMENTS. .....c.ovover et tsesb et e e b et 312 543
Office furniture and fixtures.............. et et nan 400 725

3.131 5,112
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ccocveneiincrerenne e (853) (1.620)
Property and eqUIPMENE, NEL...........ovuurveevreeresrrseereereeessessesesssesssenssssssssssnseesseeseessessessnean $2.278 $3.492

6. Related Party Transactions
Notes Receivable from Employees

In 2002, the Company loaned $200,000 in the form of a recourse note to an officer. The note is secured by shares of the
Company's common stock held by the officer and bears an interest rate of 4.50% per annum, with a three-year term. The
Company also entered into a bonus plan with the officer to which the officer is entitled to three cash bonus payments of $75,667,
$72,667 and $69,667 in October 2003, October 2004 and October 2005, respectively, or a pro rata portion thereof calculated
based upon the number of days in the applicable year for which the officer remains employed by the Company. For the year
ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 loan repayments were made out of bonuses paid to the officer totaling $16,667,
$66,667 and $66,667, respectively, and were recorded as compensation expense.

In 2001, the Company loaned $75,000 in the form of a recourse note to an officer. The note bears an interest rate of
7.75% per annum, with a four-year term and is due in three annual installments of $12,500 with the remaining $37,500 coming
due on the one year anniversary of the effective date of a registration statement of the Company's common stock. The Company
also entered into a bonus plan with the officer to which the officer is entitled to three cash bonus payments, each equal to $13,469,
payable in June 2002, June 2003 and June 2004. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 loan repayments were
made out of bonuses paid to the officer totaling $12,500, $12,500 and $6,250 were recorded as compensation expense,
respectively.

Private Placement Fees
The Company engaged an affiliate of a major investor in the 2002 private placement, to act as sole placement agent for
the transaction. The Chairman of the Board is a general partner of the major investor. The affiliate received total fees of

$3.2 million in connection with the private placement, of which $2.4 million was settled in cash, and $807,499 settled in exchange
for 109,121 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock.
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BMS Contract

In 2003, the Company entered into a collaboration agreement with BMS as described in Note 4. BMS became a
significant stockholder in the Company as part of the transaction. As such, all balance sheet and income statement amounts with
BMS have been classified as related party.

7. Convertible Notes Payable

In January 2002, the Company signed a Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement with several investors to provide the
Company with an aggregate amount of up to $10,000,000 in return for convertible notes ("notes") in one or more disbursements
at any time prior to July 31, 2002.

The Company drew down $3,000,000 in February 2002 and $1,500,000 in May 2002. The notes earned simple interest
at 8% per annum, and were converted to Series C preferred stock at $7.40 per share, upon completion of the private placement in
June 2002, Interest expense related to the notes was $82,849 for the year ended December 31, 2002, of which $26,598 was paid
in cash, and $55,891 was paid with Series C preferred stock at $7.40 per share.

In connection with the notes, the Company issued 152,024 warrants to purchase Series C preferred stock at an exercise
price of $7.40 per share. The warrants have a five-year exercise period, subject to earlier termination upon an initial public
offering of the Company's securities, and were purchased for total cash consideration of $133.

After considering the fair value of the warrants, it was determined that the notes converted into preferred stock at a
conversion price less than the fair value of the preferred stock. A beneficial conversion feature valued at approximately $642,000
was recorded as a discount to notes payable. As the notes were converted to preferred stock during 2002, the total amount of this
discount was amortized in 2002 and is reflected in interest expense.

The fair value of the issued warrants was established utilizing the Black-Scholes pricing model using the following
weighted-average assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a risk-free interest rate of 2.78%, a contractual life of five years, and no
annual dividends. The relative fair market value of the warrants was estimated as $642,491, recorded in convertible preferred
stock and fully amortized to interest expense during 2002.

In September 2003, the Company signed another Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement with several investors to
provide the Company with an aggregate of $20,000,000 in return for convertible notes in one or more disbursements at any time
prior to March 15, 2004.

The Company drew down $8,000,000 in September 2003 and $12,000,000 in October 2003. The notes earned simple
interest at 8% per annum, and converted into preferred stock in October 2003. Notes interest expense was $47,332 for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

In connection with these notes, the Company issued 324,320 and 486,481 warrants to purchase Series C preferred stock
at an exercise price of $7.40 per share related to the Septeimber and October 2003 draw downs, respectively. The warrants have a

five-year exercise period, subject to earlier termination upon an initial public offering of the Company's securities.

After considering the fair value of the warrants, it was determined that the notes converted into preferred stock at a
conversion price less than the fair value of the preferred stock. The Company
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recorded a beneficial conversion feature of $5,903,471 in September 2003 and $8,618,014 in October 2003 associated with these
issuances to reflect the value of the beneficial conversion feature embedded in the Series C preferred stock.

The Company recorded $19,918,375 as interest expense upon conversion of the notes in October 2003 comprising the
relative fair market value of the warrants issued in September and October 2003 and the associated beneficial conversion features,
net of recorded interest expense. The guidelines set forth in EITF Consensus No. 98-5 limit the amount of the beneficial
conversion feature to the amount of the proceeds of the related financing.

The fair value of the issued warrants was established utilizing the Black-Scholes pricing model using the following
weighted-average assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a risk-free interest rate of 2.78%, a contractual life of five years, and no
annual dividends.

The relative fair market value of the warrants was estimated as $2,096,529 and $3,381,986 for the warrants issued in
September 2003 and October 2003, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2003 the Company amortized $34,293 to
interest expense. Upon conversion of the notes into preferred stock in October 2003 the Company recorded $4,840,547 in
preferred stock and fully amortized the remaining amount to interest expense.

8. Leases and Commitments

The Company entered into lease agreements in May 2001 and July 2003 for office space under noncancelable operating
leases through April 2005 and June 2006, respectively. The noncancelable operating lease through April 2005 was subleased
during 2001 and the Company recorded a provision for the net future lease costs at a lower amount. The provision amounted to
$112,000 and $22,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The Company also entered into lease agreements in
June 2004 and July 2004 for additional office space under noncancelable operating leases through June 2006 and June 2009,
respectively. The future minimum payments under all leases, and contractual sublease income, by year, are as follows:

Lease Sublease
Payments _Income Net

(in thousands)
Year ending December 31,

2005, it e e e s st $2,161 32 $2,140
2000, e et 1,204 — 1,204
2007 oottt bbb et 74 — 74
2008ttt b b e b et e 77 — 77
2000....co ettt 39 — 39

$3.555 $(21) _$3.534

Rent expense under the operating leases amounted to $1.9 million, $1.7 million, and $1.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. Deferred rent under the operating leases amounted to $322,000 and $446,000
at December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
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As part of the lease agreements, the Company entered into letters of credit aggregating to $638,000 held by the
Company's landlords. These letters of credit are secured by the Company's cash and as such are reflected in restricted cash.

Equipment Loan Agreement

In February 2003, the Company entered in a Loan Agreement with a lender for an equipment loan. Pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, the Company may receive loan proceeds up to an aggregate of $1.5 million. The Company had drawn down
approximately $1.4 million of the loan through the year ended December 31, 2003 and did not finance any equipment through the
year ended December 31, 2005. The loan bears interest at 8.25% per annum and is repayable in 36 monthly installments through
2006. The Company's obligations under the Loan Agreement are secured by a security interest in equipment specified in the Loan
Agreement. In consideration of the equipment loan, the Company issued warrants exercisable for an aggregate of 4,455 shares of
the Series C preferred stock at an exercise price of $7.40 per share. The fair value of these warrants was established utilizing the
Black-Scholes pricing method using the following weighted-average assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a risk-free interest rate of
3.9%, a contractual life of 10 years, and no annual dividends. The fair market value of the warrants was estimated to be $27,500
and $5,700 and $21,800 were amortized to interest expense in 2003 and 2004, respectively.

9. Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Common Stock

In January 2004, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved a one-for-four reverse stock split of the Company's
outstanding shares of common stock and preferred stock and on January 23, 2004, the Company filed an amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and increased the number of authorized shares of common stock and preferred stock to 100,000,000
and 18,367,260, respectively. All issued and outstanding common stock, preferred stock and per share amounts contained in the
financial statements have been retroactively adjusted to reflect this stock split.

In February 2004, the Company issued 6,900,000 shares of common stock at $16.00 per share upon the closing of its
initial public offering in which it raised approximately $100.8 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and

estimated expenses.

During 2002, the Company issued 6,000 options to consultants at $1.20 per share, the estimated fair value of common
stock at the date of issuance. These options were exercised in 2002.

During 2003, the Company issued 42,250 options to consultants at a price range of $1.20—3$5.00 per share, the
estimated fair value of common stock at the date of issuance. Of these options, 29,850 shares were exercised in 2003.
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9. Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

During 2004, the Company issued 10,833 options to consultants at a price of $16.64 per share, the estimated fair value
of common stock at the date of issuance. No options were exercised in 2004.

In November 2004, the Company issued 155,667 shares of restricted stock to employees at a price of $0 per share which
will cliff vest on the anniversary of the grant date. The weighted-average fair value of this stock at the time of issuance was
$19.09 per share. Restricted stock awards are grants that entitle the holder to shares of common stock as the award vests. As a
result of these awards, during the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company recognized $352,000 in compensation expense.
These stock awards offer employees the opportunity to earn shares of our stock over time, rather than options that give the
employee the right to purchase stock at a set price. If all the remaining restricted stock awards that were granted in 2004 vest, the
Company would recognize approximately $2.6 million in compensation expense in 2005. However, no compensation expense
will be recognized for stock awards that do not vest.

Convertible Preferred Stock

At December 31, 2002 and 2003, the Company was authorized to issue up to 49,403,032 and 73,469,040 shares of
convertible preferred stock, respectively, issuable in series. Through December 31, 2003, 1,081,304 shares have been designated
as Series A convertible preferred stock, 2,500,000 shares have been designated as Series B convertible preferred stock, 694,444
shares have been designated as Series B-1 convertible preferred stock, 10,972,389 shares have been designated as Series C
convertible preferred stock and 2,079,002 shares have been designated as Series D convertible preferred stock.

The Company initially recorded the Series A, B, B-1, C and D convertible preferred stock at their fair values on the date
of issuance in 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively, net of issuance costs of $15,004, $104,172, $56,359, $3,499,854
and $24,462, respectively. A redemption event will only occur upon the liquidation, winding up or change in control or sale of
substantially all of the assets of the Company. As the redemption event is outside the control of the Company, all shares of
convertible preferred stock have been presented outside of permanent equity in accordance with EITF Topic D-98, Classification
and Measurement of Redeemable Securities. Further, the Company has also elected not to adjust the carrying values of the
Preferred Stock to the redemption value of such shares, since it is uncertain whether or when a redemption event will occur.
Subsequent adjustments to increase the carrying values to the redemption values will be made if it becomes probable that such
redemption will occur.

In June and July 2002, the Company completed a private placement for the sale of 6,807,423 shares of Series C
convertible preferred stock at $7.40 per share, resulting in gross cash proceeds of $45,819,099 and conversion of $4,555,890 of
notes and accrued interest. '

Issuance costs incurred totaled $3,499,854, of which $807,499 was the estimated fair value of 109,121 shares of
Series C convertible preferred stock issued for related professional services in lieu of cash. The fair value was estimated based on
the closing exercise price for Series C convertible preferred stock in the private placement.

In June 2002, the Company issued 1,801 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock to consultants for professional
services. The estimated fair value of the shares issued was $13,333, based on the issue price in the private placement of $7.40 per

share, and was expensed immediately.

In October 2003, the Company issued 1,351,347 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock at $7.40 per share
resulting in gross cash proceeds of $10,000,000. The Company recorded a deemed
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dividend of $7,493,857 associated with the issuance to reflect the value of the beneficial conversion feature embedded therein.
The deemed dividend will increase the net loss attributable to common stockholders in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss
per common share.

In February 2004, all shares of convertible preferred stock converted to common stock in conjunction with the
Company's initial public offering.

The rights and features of the Company's convertible preferred stock are as follows:
Dividends

Holders of shares of convertible preferred stock are entitled to noncumulative dividends of 8% per share if and when
declared by the Board of Directors. These dividends are to be paid in advance of any distributions to common stockholders. No
dividends have been declared or paid by the Company through December 31, 2003. There were no dividends declared or paid
through December 31, 2004, as all shares of convertible preferred stock were converted to shares of common stock at the
Company's initial public offering on February 12, 2004.

Conversion

Each share of convertible preferred stock is convertible, at the option of the holder, into shares of common stock on a
one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment for anti-dilution. Conversion is automatic upon the closing of an underwritten public
offering with aggregate gross proceeds of at least $40,000,000 and an offering price of at least $12.00 (as adjusted for any stock
splits, stock dividends, recapitalizations and the like) or upon the approval of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding
shares of the Series C convertible preferred stock. The Company has reserved sufficient shares of common stock for issuance
upon conversion of the outstanding preferred stock. The preferred stock has voting rights on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis.

Voting

Each holder of the shares of convertible preferred stock is entitled to voting rights equivalent to the number of shares of
common stock into which their respective shares are convertible.

Liguidation Preference

In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, holders of Series A, B, B-1, and C and D
preferred stocks shall have a liquidation preference of $2.312, $4.00, $4.32, $7.40 and $9.62 per share, respectively, plus any
declared but unpaid dividends. After payment of these preferential amounts, the remaining assets of the Company shall be
distributed among the holders of Series B and B-1 preferred stock, who shall have a liquidation preference of $4.00 and $4.32 per
share, respectively, plus any declared but unpaid dividends. After payment of these preferential amounts, the remaining assets of
the Company shall be distributed among the holders of Series A preferred stock, who shall have a liquidation preference of
$2.312 per share, plus any declared but unpaid dividends. After payment of these preferential amounts, the remaining assets of the
Company shall be distributed among the holders of the preferred and common stock pro rata based on the number of shares of
common stock held (as if the preferred stock had converted.) If upon liquidation, the assets of the Company are insufficient to
provide for the preferential amounts, then the entire assets of the Company shall be distributed first to the holders of Series C and
D preferred stock and then to the holders of Series A, B and B-1 preferred stock on a pari passu basis, in proportion to the full
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preferential amount of the respective preferred shares. A change of control or sale of substantially all of the assets of the Company
is considered to be a liquidation event.

Stock Options

The 1999 Equity Incentive Plan was adopted in July 1999 and provides for the issuance of stock options. As of
December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, the Company had reserved 1,033,415, 1,784,825 and 2,771,587 shares of common stock for
issuance under the Plan, respectively. The Board of Directors adopted in December 2003 and the stockholders approved in
January 2004 the reservation of an additional 1,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the Plan and to rename the
Plan the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2003 Plan"), to become effective upon the effective date of the registration statement.
An aggregate of 4,019,949 shares of common stock was reserved for issuance under the 2003 Plan, which amount will be
increased annually for the life of the 2003 Plan on January 1 beginning in 2005, by the lesser of (a) 5% of the number of shares of
common stock outstanding on such date and (b) 2,500,000 shares of common stock. However, the board of directors has the
authority to designate a smaller number of shares by which the authorized number of shares of common stock will be increased on
such date.

Stock options granted under the 2003 Plan may be either incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options, stock
bonuses, or rights to acquire restricted stock. Incentive stock options may be granted to employees with exercise prices of no less
than the fair value of the common stock on the grant date and nonstatutory options may be granted to employees, directors, or
consultants at exercise prices of no less than 85% of the fair value of the common stock on the grant date, as determined by the
board of directors. If, at the time the Company grants an option, the optionee directly or by attribution owns stock possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, the option price shall be at least 110%
of the fair value and shall not be exercisable more than five years after the date of grant. Options may be granted with vesting
terms as determined by the board of directors. Except as noted above, options expire no more than 10 years after the date of grant
or earlier if employment is terminated.

The Board of Directors adopted in December 2003 and the stockholders approved in January 2004 the 2003
Nonemployee Directors' Stock Option Plan (the "Directors' Plan"). The Directors' Plan provides for the automatic grant of
nonstatutory stock options to purchase shares of common stock to non-employee directors. The aggregate number of shares of
common stock that may be issued pursuant to options granted under the Directors' Plan is 150,000 shares which amount will be
increased annually on January 1, from 2005 until 2014, by the number of shares of common stock subject to options granted
during the prior calendar year. However, the Board of Directors has the authority to designate a smaller number of shares by
which the authorized number of shares of common stock will be increased.

Common stock options may include a provision whereby the holder, while an employee, director, or consultant, may
elect at any time to exercise the option as to any part or all of the shares subject to the option prior to the full vesting of the option.
Any unvested shares so purchased are subject to repurchase by the Company at a price equal to the original purchase price of the
stock. This right of repurchase will lapse with respect to the option shares, and each optionee shall vest in his or her option shares,
as follows: a minimum of 20% of the option shares upon completion of one year of service measured from the vesting
commencement date, and the balance of the option shares in a series of successive equal monthly installments upon the optionee's
completion of each of the next
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36 months of service thereafter. At December 31, 2003 and 2004, 478,766 and 267,422 shares, respectively, of common stock
acquired through the exercise of options are subject to the Company's right of repurchase.

A summary of activity under the 2003 Plan and Directors' Plan are as follows:

Qutstanding Options

Weighted-Average
Shares Exercise
Available Number Price Per
for Grant of Shares Share

Balances at December 31, 2001 ......coiiviiviiimiiieec et 515,139 110,625 $0.35
Additional shares authOriZed...........ooovicimieeeie et 527,500 — —
OPLioNS GLANLEA .....occerreiiiiiieietceiit e s et (499,449) 499,449 $1.08
OPLiONS EXEICISEA ...vvivreiiiiriiiitet sttt sttt ettt esetasnsnras — (123,750) $0.42
Options CANCEIEA .......coeveiiieeririr et ettt en e eeae 36,375 (36,375) $0.84
Options shares repurchased.............c.cooveirrceiiinee e 3.901 — $0.46
Balances at December 31, 2002..........ccooiieiiiiieeiiiieeecisreteee e s 583,466 449,949 $1.10
Additional shares authorized...............c.coooiiiiniiiiieecee e 1,232,625 — —_
OPLIONS GIANLEA ...oovevieieiriicrreir ettt ea bt see e eaaees (1,721,746) 1,721,746 $1.90
OPHONS EXEICISEA ....cveiviereriririeniiiet ettt er e re e st bes e e sneneas — (488,988) $1.39
OPLioNS CANCEIEA ......ovovireeririereiei ettt ettt n e 64,553 (64,553) $1.20
Options shares repurchased............ccerrireiiininiceee e 7.773 — $0.43
Balances at December 31, 2003......c.oooieie et 166,671 1,618,154 $1.86
Additional shares authorized............c..cooevvvie it 1,200,000 — —
OPLIONS ZIANTEA ..vvevviirereie ettt eteete ettt ettt s e s e saesansensaasans (1,107,338) 1,107,338 $14.22
OPHONS EXETCISEA ....c.vvireiriririirirririrr ettt eneenaereens — (66,459) $2.74
OpHioNS CANCELEA .......oovvviiiiieei ettt et nanre s 17,710 (17,710) $7.95
Options shares repurchased. ..o e 8,888 — $0.59
Restricted shares 1SSUEd...........cccovvriiiniiiiniccccc s (155.667) — $0.00
Balances at December 31, 2004 ......c.vovieeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeee e ee e ereseere e s e snens 130,264 2.641.323 $6.98
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The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Qutstanding

Number Weighted-Avg. Options

Outstanding at Remaining Vested at
Exercise Prices Dec. 31, 2004 Contract Life _Dec. 31, 2004
F0.24—F0.40 ..ot e 9,450 6.25 9,397
S1.20 e e 435,235 8.22 175,151
B2.00 o 1,058,530 8.88 284,653
B5.00—88.35 e e 328,693 9.33 16,438
$13.35—816.12 i 272,807 9.56 16,452
B16.13—818.29 (v 264,508 9.61 5,463
B18.46—F19.95 .o 272,100 9.46 11,516
2,641,323 9.02 519.070

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 were $10.72
and $10.15, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Board of Directors adopted the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "Purchase Plan") in December 2003 and
the stockholders approved it in January 2004 to become effective upon the effective date of this registration statement. The
Purchase Plan authorizes the issuance of 250,000 shares of common stock pursuant to purchase rights granted to the Company's
employees or to employees of any of its affiliates, which amount will be increased on January 1, from 2005 until 2024, by 2% of
the number of shares of common stock outstanding on that date or such lesser amount as the Board of Directors may determine.
However, the Board of Directors has the authority to designate a smaller number of shares by which the authorized number of
shares of common stock will be increased on that date.

Under the Purchase Plan, employees, subject to certain restrictions, may purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the
fair market value at either the date of eligibility for enrollment or the date of purchase, whichever is less. Purchases are limited to
15% of each employee's eligible annual compensation. Through the end of December 2004, we issued a total 0of 27,047 shares
under this plan, and 222,953 shares remain available for future issuance.

Notes Receivable From Officers

During 2000, the Company issued a note receivable to an officer to finance the purchase of shares of the Company's
common stock. The principal amount of the note was $70,800 and bore interest at 5.88% per annum and was full recourse. As of
December 31, 2002, the note receivable balance was $70,800 plus accrued interest of approximately $12,700, of which the
principal was recorded in stockholders' equity (deficit). The accrued interest was recorded in other long-term assets. In
accordance with the officer's employment agreement, this note was forgiven in November 2003.

During 2001, the Company issued a note receivable to an officer to finance the purchase of shares of the Company's

common stock. The principal amount of the note is $11,100 and bears interest at 7.75% per annum, is full recourse and matures in
2004. The note is due in three annual installments of
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$3,700. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004, loan repayments were made out of bonuses paid to the
officer totaling $1,850, $3,700, $3,700 and $1,850 and were recorded as compensation expense, respectively.

During 2001, the Company issued a note receivable to an officer to finance the purchase of shares of the Company's
common stock. The principal amount of the note is $39,600 and bears interest at 10% per annum, is full recourse, and matures in
2005. As of December 31, 2002 and 2003 the note receivable balance is $39,600 plus accrued interest of approximately $4,100
and $8,100, respectively, of which the principal is recorded in stockholders' equity (deficit).

Shares Reserved for Issuance

The Company has reserved shares of common stock for future issuance at December 31, 2004 as follows:

Options OULSIAE PIANS ......veveiiieececiiieet st ree et et e e b e s b ss e beee e se et asssesaeneaneesnenees _ 160,000
2003 Plan and DIrector's PLAn.........ovivivieiir ittt et eeve et ea e e st enbeasaesersneaares 2,771,587
PUICHASE PIAN 1ottt et sttt sb et et b et es s ereseensasesaneeteseans 222,953

3,154,540

10. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the
Company's deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Federal and state net operating loSSES ........c.ceoeurureeierererenrersnreteeieteerere s sesnaerens $21,925 $37,811
Federal and state 1esearch Credifs.........c.ocvvvieiirecriririiicsrereeneee e sese s svesanaeaneeas 2,364 10,090
DEfEITEA REVEINUE. ..ottt teeb e st e e seer e st esares st e st eesessrsessssabeesaneesnees 8,266 6,345
Deferred Stock COMPENSALION «......vviveeiieiieteetreeieiitiraesaeee e eesesnas st ses esesesnsereesssaesres 1,018 3,147
ORI ottt e e b et et b et en s e s s er e eebee s et b et teeaeeresanereeteete et aneanean 1,333 1.109
34,906 58,502
Valuation ALOWANCE .........ccooviiieieieeeeee et ettt et nt e st sa e er et enses (34.906) _(58.502)
Net deferred taX ASSEIS....cuoei e ittt ettt et eeeeee et e e tneevesae e ersereeae et e raeeeees $— $—

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future earnings, if any, the timing and amount of which are
uncertain. Accordingly, the net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance. The valuation allowance
increased by $11.6 million, $17.8 million and $23.6 million for the periods ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004
respectively.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had net operating loss and research carryforwards for federal income tax
purposes of approximately $93.7 million and $6.0 million which expire beginning in the year 2021. The Company also has state
net operating loss and research credit carryforwards of
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approximately $86.9 million and $6.3 million. The net operating losses begin expiring in 2007 and the research credits have no
expiration date.

Utilization of the Company's net operating loss may be subject to substantial annual limitation due to the ownership
change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions. Such an annual limitation could result in
the expiration of the net operating loss before utilization.

11. Subsequent Event

On March 11, 2005 the Company amended its agreement with Avecia of December 27, 2004 agreement for the
manufacture of: (a) E2F single strand intermediates, (b) NF-k B Decoy single strand intermediates and hybridized duplex
products, and (¢) HIF-Decoy single strand intermediates. The amendment extended by one month the period during which Avecia
would manufacture certain materials for an additional payment by the Company of $1.6 million plus reimbursement for raw
materials. The agreement was previously amended on March 4, 2005 to specify the amount of reimbursement to be paid by the

* Company for previously used raw materials. The agreement does not provide for the production of material for commercial sale.

12. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Three Months Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months
Ended December 31, September 30, June 3@, Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Contract revenue, related

PAMLY c.cvcrrieir e $8,732 38,678 $9,266 $— $10,635 $—  §7,749 $—
Net loss attributable to

common stockholders....... $(11,972) $(37,862) $(12,479) $(15,724) $(8,832) $(11,910) $(6,565) $(12,078)
Basic and diluted net loss per

common share .................. $(0.44)  $(16.58) $(0.46) $(7.78)  $(0.32) $(6.07)  $(0.42) $(6.30)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 24, 2005.

CORGENTECH INC.

By: /s/ JOHN P. MCLAUGHLIN

John P. McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOHN P. MCLAUGHLIN President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal March 24, 2005
John P. McLaughlin Executive Officer)
/s/ RICHARD P, POWERS Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial =~ March 24, 2005
Richard P. Powers and Accounting Olfficer)
/s/ RODNEY A. FERGUSON Chairman of the Board March 24, 2005

Rodney A. Ferguson, Ph.D.

/s/ RICHARD B. BREWER Director March 24, 2005

Richard B. Brewer

/s/ THOMAS J, COLLIGAN Director March 24, 2005

Thomas J. Colligan

/s/ VICTOR J. DZAU Director March 24, 2005

Victor J. Dzau, M.D.

/s/ DANIEL S. JANNEY Director March 24, 2005

Daniel S. Janney

/s/ MICHAEL B. SWEENEY Director March 24, 2005
Michael B. Sweeney

*By: /s/ JOHN P. MCLAUGHLIN
Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description of Document
3.1(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
3.2(2) Restated Bylaws.
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 through 3.2.
4.2(3) Specimen stock certificate.
10.1(3) 2003 Equity Incentive Plan.
10.2(3) 2003 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan.
10.3(3) 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
10.4(3) Lease Agreement, dated March 16, 2000, between Gateway Center, LLC and Corgentech Inc.
10.5(3) Sublease, dated March 11, 2002, between Michael Gurfinkel and Corgentech Inc.
10.6(3) Sublease, dated May 15, 2003, between Coulter Pharmaceuticals, Inc, and Corgentech Inc.
10.7(3) Lease, dated November 7, 1997, between Coulter Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and HMS Gateway Office L.P., as
amended by the First Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated November 10, 1998, and Second Amendment to
Lease Agreement, dated May 19, 2000.
10.8(3)F Restated and Amended Exclusive License Agreement, dated May 15, 2003, between The Board of Trustees of
the Leland Stanford Junior University and Corgentech Ine.
10.9(3)% Restated and Amended License Agreement, dated October 1, 2003, between The Brigham and Women's
Hospital, Inc. and Corgentech Inc.
10.10(3)t Collaboration Agreement, dated October 10, 2003, between Bristol-Myers Squibb Company and Corgentech
Inc.
10.11(3) Master Security Agreement, dated February 3, 2003, between GE Capital Corporation and Corgentech Inc., as
amended.
10.12(3) Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, dated October 10, 2003.
10.13(3) Form of Indemnity Agreement.
10.14(3) Employment Letter, dated November 29, 1999, with John P. McLaughlin.
10.15(3) Promissory Note, dated January 19, 2000, issued by John P. McLaughlin to Corgentech Inc.
10.16(3) Stock Pledge Agreement, dated March 2, 2000, with John P. McLaughlin.
10.17(3) Termination of Preemptive Rights and Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 17, 2002, between John P.
McLaughlin and Corgentech Inc.
10.18(3) Employment Letter, dated August 18, 2000, with Leslie M. McEvoy.
10.19(3) Promissory Note, dated June 28, 2001, issued by Leslie M. McEvoy to Corgentech Inc.
10.20(3) Promissory Note, dated August 24, 2001, issued by Leslie M. McEvoy to Corgentech Inc.
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10.21(3) Letter Agreement, dated June 30, 2001, with Leslie M. McEvoy.

10.22(3) Letter Agreement, dated August 24, 2001, with Leslie M. McEvoy.

10.23(3) Stock Pledge Agreement, dated August 28, 2001, with Leslie M. McEvoy.

10.24(3) Employment Letter, dated October 18, 2001, with Richard P. Powers.

10.25(3) Promissory Note, dated December 20, 2001, issued by Richard P. Powers to Corgentech Inc.

10.26(3) Stock Pledge Agreement, dated December 20, 2001, with Richard P. Powers.

10.27(3) Employment Letter, dated February 1, 2001, with Todd J. Lorenz.

10.28(3) Employment Letter, dated July 2, 2002, with James Z. Huang.

10.29(3) Letter Agreement, dated October 11, 2002, with James Z. Huang.

10.30(3) Promissory Note, dated October 11, 2002, issued by James Z. Huang to Corgentech Inc.

10.31(3) Stock Pledge Agreement, dated October 11, 2002, with James Z Huang.

10.32(4) Employment Letter, dated April 30, 2004, with Patrick Broderick.

10.33(5) Forms of Notice and Forms of Agreement for Stock Option and Restricted Stock Grants.

10.34(5)t Licensing Agreement, dated September 27, 2004, with Cyclacel Limited.

10.35(6) Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan.

10.36(6) Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan.

10.37(6)tt Manufacturing Agreement, dated December 27, 2004 with Avecia Limited.

10.38(6) Non-employee director cash compensation arrangement.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24.1(6) Power of Attorney.

31.1 Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a).

31.2 Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a).

32.1% Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of
Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350).

32.2% Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of

Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350).

(1 Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-110923), filed on
December 4, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

2) Filed as Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-110923), filed on
December 4, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

3) Filed as the like numbered exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-110923), filed
on December 4, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.
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Filed as the like numbered exhibit to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as the like numbered exhibit to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as the like numbered exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Confidential treatment has been granted for portions of this exhibit.
Confidential treatment has been requested for portions of this exhibit.

The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, are not
deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing
of Corgentech Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-K/A), irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-112735 and 333-
122016) pertaining to the Corgentech Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, the 2003 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan, the
2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and the Non-Plan Option Grants of our report dated January 25, 2005 except for Note 11 as
for which the date is March 11, 2005 with respect to the financial statements of Corgentech Inc. included in its Annual Report
(Form 10-K/A) for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 22,2005




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, John P. McLaughlin, certify that:

1.

2,

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Corgentech Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and ! are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2005

/s/ JOHN P. MCLAUGHLIN

John P. McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

1, Richard P. Powers, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Corgentech Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2005

/s/ RICHARD P. POWERS

Richard P. Powers
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), John P. McLaughlin, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Corgentech Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company') hereby certifies that, to the best of
his knowledge, as follows: :

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the period ended December 31, 2004, to which this Certification is
attached as Exhibit 32.1 (the "Periodic Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act 0f 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set his hand hereto as of this 24" day of March 2005.

By:  /s/JoHNP. MCLAUGHLIN

John P. McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), has been provided to
Corgentech Inc. and will be retained by Corgentech Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request. This certification accompanies the Form 10-K/A to which it telates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Corgentech Inc. under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-
K/A), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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Exhibit 32.2

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), Richard P. Powers, Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Corgentech Inc., a Delaware corporation (the ""Company") hereby certifies that, to the
best of his knowledge, as follows:

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the period ended December 31, 2004, to which this Certification is
attached as Exhibit 32.2 (the "Periodic Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set his hand hereto as of this 24" day of March 2005.

By: /s/ RICHARD P. POWERS
Richard P. Powers
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), has been provided to
Corgentech Inc. and will be ret ained by Corgentech Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request. This certification accompanies the Form 10-K/A to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Corgentech Inc. under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-
K/A), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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statements. These forward-looking statements are based upon our current expectations. Qur actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from those anticipated in such
forward-looking statements as a result of these risks and uncertainties, which include, without limitation, risks related to the development of TF Decoys and aptamers, progress, timing
and results of our clinical trials, intellectual property matters, difficulties or delays in obtaining regulatory approval, competition from other pharmaceutical or biotechnology companies,
our ability to obtain additional financing to support our operations and other risks detailed in relevant filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our Annual Report
on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2004. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these [orward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this
document. All forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement, and Corgentech undertakes no obligation 10 revise or update any forward-looking
statements (o reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof.
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